MEETING OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
Community College of Philadelphia
Monday, March 27, 2017 — 12:00 p.m.

Present: Mr. Anthony J. Simonetta, Mr. Matthew Bergheiser (via telephone), Mr. Jeremiah White,

Ms. Suzanne Biemiller, Donald Generals, Ed.D., Mr. Jacob Eapen, Mr. Todd E. Murphy,
Mr. James P. Spiewak, Mr. Robert Lucas, Victoria Zellers Esg., Mr. Gim S. Lim, and
representing Grant Thornton: Mr. Brian Page and Ms. Angelica Roiz

Not Present:  Representing the Meridian Group: Mr. Anthony B. Scott
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EXECUTIVE SESSION

AGENDA — PUBLIC SESSION

Approve Minutes of Audit Committee Meeting on September 29, 2016 (Action Item):

Action: Mr. Simonetta asked for a motion to recommend acceptance of the September
29, 2016 Audit Committee meeting minutes. Mr. Bergheiser made the motion. Mr. Simonetta
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

2015-2016 A-133 Audit Report (Action Item):

Mr. Brian Page reviewed the results of the 2015-2016 A-133 Audit, which is now called
the “Uniform Guidance Audit,” using the draft audited financial statements and supplementary
information in Attachment A to these minutes. He explained that the audit is a compliance
audit, which examines Federal Funding. Page 63 of the report provides a schedule of the
College’s federal awards expenditures. The College had $91.3 million in Federal expenditures of
which $87.2 million was in Student Financial Assistance. Student Financial Assistance is
comprised of primarily Pell Awards and Direct Loans. The single audit process for determining
programs to audit resulted in the auditors including the Student Financial Assistance Cluster,
which leaves a base of about $7 million in smaller programs from which they to select other
programs for audit. The auditors use a risk-based approach in selecting the major programs
for audit. Certain programs are audited primarily on their dollar value in meeting a threshold,
while smaller programs are audited based on risk.

Ms. Angelica Roiz reviewed the two specific programs that were audited: The Student
Financial Assistance Cluster and the Career and Technical Education — Basic Grants to States as
stated on page 63 of the report. The Student Financial Assistance audit tests for eligibility and
cash management in drawing the federal funds. Specifically, the auditors look at payroll
expenditures and other direct expenditures, review supporting documentation and ensure they
are allowable costs.

In reviewing both programs, the auditors are required to understand the College’s
internal controls. Although no opinion is issued on the College’s internal controls, the auditors
are required to do walkthroughs and testing of appropriate approvals. For example, in the
packaging of Student Financial Assistance, they will ensure adequate controls are in place.
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Mr. Page pointed out that this year the Career and Technical Education — Basic Grants
to States CFDA# 84.048 was comprised of $1.3 million in expenses, which was tested based on
the compliance standards and noted that there were no findings with respect to this or the
Student Financial Assistance Cluster program.

Mr. Brian Page discussed the two types of reports that Grant Thornton issued, which
begin on pages 66 and 68. First, is a yellow book opinion relating to the financial statement
audit, which was discussed at the September 29, 2016 Audit Committee meeting. The second
is a compliance opinion related to the major federal programs audited.

Federal guidelines require auditors to list institutions as high risk if they have had any
material weaknesses within two years. Mr. Page noted that as a result of having no material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies as well as no issues of non-compliance for the last two
years, the College is now considered a low-risk auditee.

The College has had another clean audit this year.

The power point Presentation to the Audit Committee provided by Grant Thornton is
included as an attachment to these minutes. (Attachment B)

Action: Mr. Simonetta asked for a motion to recommend acceptance of the June 30,
2016 A-133 Audit Report. Ms. Biemiller made the motion. Mr. Bergheiser seconded the motion.
The motion passed unanimously.

Internal Audit Update (Information Item):

Mr. Lucas provided an update on the 2016-2018 Internal Audit Plan. He provided a copy
of a summary report of activities since the last Audit Committee meeting as well as a copy of
the Internal Audit Plan for the two-year period ending June 2018 to the Committee members.
Mr. Lucas stated that, since the last meeting, he had issued two finalized audit reports to
management, one draft audit report is pending review by management in several divisions, and
three audits are in progress which should be completed shortly.

Mr. Lucas also noted that, since the first year of the two-year Internal Audit Plan is nearly
over, he will be performing an informal risk assessment update by soliciting input from Cabinet
members and senior managers to determine if there are any new or significantly changed
functions that should be considered for possible addition to the remaining year of the Internal
Audit Plan due to the risks associated with those changes. Mr. Lucas noted that any such
changes he believes should be considered for inclusion in the Internal Audit Plan will be
discussed with Dr. Generals, Mr. Eapen and Dr. Gay for their review and approval. Any such
changes will be communicated to the Audit Committee at the June 2017 meeting.

Mr. Lucas also noted that he continues to work with management to obtain the status
of previously issued audit comments. He provided an updated version of the Internal Audit
Follow-Up Matrix to the Audit Committee, which included all audit report recommendations for
which management’s action plans are not yet completed as well as those for which
management’s action plans have been completed since the last Audit Committee meeting. The
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completed items are shaded in grey on the matrix and also indicate the work management has
done to address the risks identified in their audited areas. Mr. Lucas noted that a number of the
action plans are long-term as they include construction, new software or new equipment, each
of which have significant time and expense considerations. The budget constraints in 2016-
2017 may further extend the timeline of some action plans.

Mr. Lucas’ presentation is included as an attachment to these minutes. (Attachment C)

Next Meeting:

The next meeting of the Audit Committee will be held on Thursday, June 15, 2017 at
12:00 noon in the Isadore Shrager Boardroom, M2-1.
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EXECUTIVE SESSION

AGENDA — PUBLIC SESSION

Approve Minutes of Audit Committee Meeting on September 29, 2016 (Action Item):

Action: Mr. Simonetta asked for a motion to recommend acceptance of the September
29, 2016 Audit Committee meeting minutes. Mr. Bergheiser made the motion. Mr. Simonetta
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanlmous]y

2015-2016 A-133 Audit Report (Action Item):

Mr. Brian Page reviewed the results of the 2015-2016 A-133 Audlt which is now called
the “Uniform Guidance Audit,” using the draft audited financial statements and supplementary
information in Attachment A to these minutes. He explained that the audit is a compliance
audit, which examines Federal Funding. Page 63 of the report provides a schedule of the
College’s federal awards expenditures. The College had $91.3 million in Federal expenditures of
which $87.2 million was in Student Financial Assistance. Student Financial Assistance is
comprised of primarily Pell Awards and Direct Loans. The single audit process for determining
programs to audit resulted in the auditors including the Student Financial Assistance Cluster,
which leaves a base of about $7 million in smaller programs from which they to select other
programs for audit. The auditors use a risk-based approach in selecting the major programs
for audit. Certain programs are audited primarily on their doliar value in meeting a threshold,
while smaller programs are audited based on risk.

Ms. Angelica Roiz reviewed the two specific programs that were audited: The Student
Financial Assistance Cluster and the Career and Technical Education — Basic Grants to States as
stated on page 63 of the report. The Student Financial Assistance audit tests for eligibility and
cash management in drawing the federal funds. Specifically, the auditors look at payroll
expenditures and other direct expenditures, review supporting documentation and ensure they
are allowable costs.

In reviewing both programs, the auditors are required to understand the College’s
internal controls. Although no opinion is issued on the College’s internal controls, the auditors
are required to do walkthroughs and testing of appropriate approvals. For example, in the
packaging of Student Financial Assistance, they will ensure adequate controls are in place.
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Mr. Page pointed out that this year the Career and Technical Education — Basic Grants
to States CFDA# 84.048 was comprised of $1.3 million in expenses, which was tested based on
the compliance standards and noted that there were no findings with respect to this or the
Student Financial Assistance Cluster program.

Mr. Brian Page discussed the two types of reports that Grant Thornton issued, which
begin on pages 66 and 68. First, is a yellow book opinion relating to the financial statement
audit, which was discussed at the September 29, 2016 Audit Committee meeting. The sécond
is a compliance opinion related to the major federal programs audited.

Federal guidelines require auditors to list institutions as high risk if they have had any
material weaknesses within two years. Mr. Page noted that as a result of having no material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies as well as no issues of non-compliance for the last two
years, the College is now considered a low-risk auditee.

The College has had another clean audit this year.

The power point Presentation to the Audit Committee provided by Grant Thornton is
included as an attachment to these minutes. (Attachment B)

Action: Mr. Simonetta asked for a motion to recommend acceptance of the June 30,

2016 A-133 Audit Report. Ms. Biemilier made the motion. Mr. Bergheiser seconded the motion.
The motion passed unanimously.

Internal Audit Update (Information Item):

Mr. Lucas provided an update on the 2016-2018 Internal Audit Plan. He provided a copy

- of a summary report of activities since the last Audit Committee meeting as well as a copy of

the Internal Audit Plan for the two-year period ending June 2018 to the Committee members.
Mr. Lucas stated that, since the last meeting, he had issued two finalized audit reports to
management, one draft audit report is pending review by management in several divisions, and
three audits are in progress which should be completed shortly.

~ Mr. Lucas also noted that, since the first year of the two-year Internal Audit Plan is nearly
over, he will be performing an informal risk assessment update by soliciting input from Cabinet
members and senior managers to determine if there are any new or significantly changed
functions that should be considered for possible addition to the remaining year of the Internal
Audit Plan due to the risks associated with those changes. Mr. Lucas noted that any such
changes he believes should be considered for inclusion in the Internal Audit Plan will be
discussed with Dr. Generals, Mr. Eapen and Dr. Gay for their review and approval. Any such
changes will be communicated to the Audit Committee at the June 2017 meeting.

Mr. Lucas also noted that he continues to work with management to obtain the status
of previously issued audit comments. He provided an updated version of the Internal Audit
Follow-Up Matrix to the Audit Committee, which included all audit report recommendations for
which management’s action plans are not yet completed as well as those for which
management’s action plans have been completed since the last Audit Committee meeting. The
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'completed items are shaded in grey on the matrix and also indicate the work management has

done to address the risks identified in their audited areas. Mr. Lucas noted that a number of the
action plans are long-term as they include construction, new software or new equipment, each
of which have significant time and expense considerations. The budget constraints in 2016-
2017 may further extend the timeline of some action plans.

‘Mr. Lucas’ presentation is included as an attachment to these minutes. (Attachment C)

Next Meeting:
The next meeting of the Audit Committee will be held on Thursday, June 15, 2017 at

| 12:00 noon in the Isadore Shrager Boardroom, M2-1.
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Independent Certfified Public Accountants

g financial statements of the business-type activities and the
t of the Community College of Philadelphia (the College) as of and
b and 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which

collecuvely compﬂse ollege’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

ents

| fait presentation of these financial statements in
fcepted in the United States of America; this includes
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

Management's respongBility for the financial stafg
Management is respongible for the prep
accordance with accounting princip)
the design, implementation, ag
presentation of financial statements that
etrot.

Auditor's responsibility
Our tresponsibility is to express opinions on these
conducted out audits in accordance with auditing s
America and the standards applicable to financial
issued by the Comptrollet. General of the United States. Those standards re
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stal
matetial misstatement.

based on our audits, We
y ac¥tpted in the United States of
d in Government Auditing Standards
jre that we plan and

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
in the financial statements. The procedutes selected depend on the audito
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statem: whether due to feaud of
etror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considets internal cotittol relevant to the College’s
prepatation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedutes that
are apptopriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opition. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁc:ent and appropnate to prowde a basis
for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our cpnuon, the financial statements referred to above present fan-ly, in all material respects, the
tespective financial position of the business-type activities and disctetely presented component unit of
the Community College of Philadelphia as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accotdance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

tinciples genm'ally accepted in the United States of America require that the
discussion and analysis on pages 6 thtough 15, the schedule of funding progress on

[¥ns on page 62, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,

i not a require of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
which considets it to be an essential part of financial teporting for
ents in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
Sination is the responsibility of management. We have applied certain
limited procggys supplementaty information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accép tes of Ametica. These limited procedures consisted of inquities of
management about the ethods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
i i ent’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
asic financial statements. We 'do not exptess an
bn because the limited procedutes do not provide
provide any assurance,

placing the basic
This required

opinion ot provide anyassurance on
us with sufficient ewdei;ce toe

Supplementary information

Roguivements, Cost Principles, and Andit Reguirernents for Bl i
additional analysis and is not a requited part of the sta ements. Such supplementary
i i X ‘ from and relates directly to the
undetlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fina statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit basic ﬁnanclal
statements and cettain additional procedures. These additional procedures inclu

teconciling the information directly to the undetlying accounting and other recgffls

additional

In our opinion, the supplementary information is faitly stated, in all matey § spects, in relation to the

basic financial statements as a whole.



Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Goverament Anditing Standards, we have also issued our report, dated September 30,
2016, on our considetation of the College’s intetnal control over financial tepotting and on our tests
of its compliance with cettain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agteements and
othet mattess. The putpose of that report is to describe the scope of out testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the tesults of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
e effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting ot on compliance. That report is an
| of an audit petformed in accordance with Gevernment Anditing Standards in consideting the
iernal control ovet financial reporting and compliance.




Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT*S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

June 30, 2016 and 2015

INTRODUCTION

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is based upon facts, decisions, and conditions known as of the
date of the audit refiet. The results for 2016 are compated to those for the 2015 fiscal year. The MD&A should be read
in conjunction ancial statements and accompanying notes which follow this section. -

i delphia (the College) has prepated its financial statements in accotdance with Govetnment
"1 (GASB) principles, which establish standards for extetnal financial reporting for public
d require the financial statements be presented to focus on the College as a whole. The
mmutnity College of Philadelphia Foundation (the Foundation) ate reported as a component
include the statiglizal reporting section in accordance with GASB Statement 44.

ed in the development of a new strategic plan. The strategic plan is
focused on: studént succedd) Wovkforce development and economic innovation; fiscal stability and
ies; and external and internal community relations.
scale implementation of its Guided Pathways initiative that will provide students
gigifistudents with clear academic program roadmaps, an
ection, facilitates access into & program of study for
es intentional advising coupled with progress tracking
. proving student persistefice and degree completion.
e Complementing the Guided Pathways efforts, thefgBllege is also implementing the Stazfish Fatly Alert System.
This system is a key technology-based solution 8t will increase ingfikention and communication initiatives
that are essential to keeping students invested ififeir education g
A new Academic Advising Department has been established,
that will work within the guided pathways model, incorporgst
semester, implementing proactive outreach to students, agfiftracking G
e The College completed a collabotative reorganization intended to make the College a
success and cémpletion, This student-focused reorganization is designed to build capac
College’s strategic goals and continuing its longstanding commitment to affordable educaty
& As part of the reotganization, 2 Vice President for Workforce and Econiomic Innovati
division. Working with other ateas of the College, this division will significantly ex
of the College’s wotkforce development and continuing education programs.
¢ A comptehensive Facilities Master Plan is in the final stages of developme:
Wallace, Roberts & Todd (WRT). '
¢ The College is embarking on a public private partnership with Radnor Property Group for 2 mixed-use facility
at 154 and Hamilton Streets and has recently signed a letter of intent. It will include student housing, market
rate housing and tetail space. The College would receive annual ground lease payments from the developer.
The ground lease and opetating agreements are being negotiated.
o  Credit enrollments for the Fall 2015 semester exceeded those of the prior year. Howevet, the College
erienced 2 5% reduction in credit hours for the Spring 2016 semester. Overall, final credit hours were only
2% less than the priot yeat, which is better than state-wide and national trends.
e The planning has been completed for the renovations to the Collége’s biology labs on the main campus, with
construction to begin in October 2016. The biology prep room renovation it the Northeast Regional Center

¢  The College has begun the
. with a highly structured exp8fience driven by p.
intake process that clarifies students’ goals

ic plafhing with students in their first
ents fo monitor academic progress.

ational leader in student
ile supporting the
nd open success.
ed to lead the




Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED
A

June 30, 2016 and 2015

was completed. Beginning in the 2015-16 fiscal yeat, the College began receiving State payments for 50% of
the debt setvice for these projects. .
g received $1.5 million of additional funds from the State, $2.0 million of additional fonds from the
dditional §1.4 million specifically allocated for capital purchases.

ionsecutive yeat, a balanced budget was achieved. '
e College’s bond rating from A1 to A2, in part due to the uncertainties surrounding the

ased by $4.8 million o 7.4% ptimarily due to the continued impact of GASB 45 and GASB
icts were from the savings from the partial refindnce of the 2008 Series bonds and the additional

The College’s financial statements fi
GASB repotting model is desighed to%rovide readers wit
of three basic statements:

ovetview of the College’s finances and is comptised

A the College’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
creases ot decreages in net assets setve as one indicator of

. 'The Siatements of Nat Position present mnforma
between the two reported as net assets. Over tim
how the financial position of the College is chat

o ‘The Statmments of Revenues, Eocpenses and Changes in Net Position  showing how the College’s net
assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All chang . potted as soon as the undetlying
event giving tise to the change occurs, regardless of thigffiming of@ated cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are repotted in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows ing

» The Statements of Carh Flows ate repotted on the direct method. The direct method o
portrays net cash flows from operations, financing, and investing receipts and disbursafights

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to derstanding of the data
provided in the financial statements. The notes contain details on both the accountingdfgiicies and procedures that the
College has adopted, as well as additional information for certain amounts reported in the financial statements.

Net Position

The College’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less
accumulated depreciation and outstanding debt incurred to acquire those assets. The College uses these capital assets to
provide services to students, faculty, and administration; consequently, these assets are not available for futute spending,
Although the College’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

At June 30, 2016, the College’s net position was $61.1 million, with assets of §225.0 million exceeding liabilities of $171.8
million, As a result of financial circumstances which conttibuted to asset growth, net position increased by $6.8 million
in the 2016 fiscal ygar prior to tecording the impact of the post-employment benefit liability. The change in net assets

after recording -employment benefit accrual was a negative $4.8 million. Untestricted net assets fell from a
negative §35 negative §42.6 million. Absent the cumulative impact of the post-employment benefit liability
(GASB 45 tequirements, unrestricted net position would cutrently be at a level of $27.8 million. The
other fa i ucing the unrestticted net position value was unfunded depreciation expense for 2016 in
the a illi ) . )

net asset pogi

tion ($42.6 million) teflects the cumulative impact of the post-employment
benefit expense accruals in the amo: i :

..4 million.




Community College of Philadelphia

(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015
Summaty of Net Position
June 30,
2016 2015 2014
(In millions)
$ M2 315 327
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets net of d 166.5 171.3 179.5
Bond proceeds av 7.5 - 0.2
Other 16.8 16.2 16.1
Total assets 2250 219.0 28.5
Deferred outflows of resoutces 8.0 0.5 -

. Liabilities:
" Cutrent liabilities 29.6
Noncurtent Habilities 126.4
Total liabilities 156.0
Deferred inflows of resources -
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets T 938
. Unrestricted (26.0y
Restricted: .
Ezpendable 4.9 4,7 4.7
Total netposition §  6L1 65.9 725



. Community College of Philaclelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia) -

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

{ i 1 engineering technology lab, creation of a research lab, and renovations of four chemistry
labs and P The College’s capital assets as of June 30, 2016 net of accumulated depteciauon wete $166.5
8 million over ghe amount reported for 2015 of $171.3 million. The decrease in the net value
ted depteciation which exceeded the value of capital additions.

Liabilities
Total cutrent liabilities decg$ik .
by $1.0 million primacily de to a ifi the year-end accrual for employees electing the Colleges retirement

incentive. The College self-insures its gfiployee medical plan. A reinsurance limit of $250,000 was in place for the 2016
fiscal year to cap institutional financigigxposure for individuals with exttaordinarily large claims in a policy yeat.

the year. Payables to government agencies decteased
tate PHEAA funds pﬂor to June 30.

The College’s outstanding long-term debt was at §73.9 n
2015 reflecting ptincipal payments made during the fiscg
refinance of the 2008 Bonds, and issuance of the 201
other than pensions, projected to be paid to retited employees,
30, 2016. The July 1, 2015 report included certain changes in actuaris
by $11.6 million in fiscal year 2016. The College has elected to :
liability over a 30-year petiod atid to.continue to fund the costs of thE post-retirciifent benefit out of the College’s annual
budgeted revenues. A sepatate trust has not been established to fund any pottion of this liabili
benefits liability amount for fiscal year 2016 also includes $3.4 million related to GASB 68 whi
to record its relative proportion of the net funded status of certain state cost shating pension
estimated value for the accrued post-employment benefit liability in fiscal years 2016, 2015, /
$58.2 million, and $47.3 million, respectively. Absent this reporting requirement, the Colle
2016 would have been at a level of $131.5 million.

o as of June 2016, an increase of $2.7 million from June
atirement of the College’s 2010 Bonds,

et assets as of June 30,
{
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Capital lease obligations inchide mainly technology associated with academic and administrative computing. The College
paid off the remaining obligations of leases for a digital press, copier equipment and computet equipment.

June 30,

2016 2015 ' 2014
(In millions)

Operai:ing revenues:
Net tuition and fees _ 316 § 320 % 353
Augiliary enterprises and othe , ; 1.9 120 : 1.8
Total 33.5 34.0 371
Operating expenses 163.4 166.1
Operating loss (129.4) (129.0)

Net nonoperating revenues 114.0 110.5
Change in net assets before other revenues (17.2) (18.5)
Net capii.:al tevenue and changes to endowments ' 12.3 1.4.0
Total change in net position | $ {49 4.5)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Operating Revenues

The largest sources of operaung trevenue for the College are student tuition and fees and auxiliary enterprise revenues.
In 2016, the tui ge per credit was §153; the same as the previous year, The Technology Fee was also unchanged
R eral College Fee, which suppotts student life programs and athletics, remained unchanged at

- atges coutse fees which range from $75 to $300 in selected high-cost courses. Average
total tuitis enitE per credit for 2016 was $204. Auxziliary entetprxse revenues are generated from bookstore,

offset by the schitlarship a]lowance for 2016, 2015. and 2014 respecuvely, of $45, 185 037 $40, 533, ,705, and
$43,395,057. The scholarship allo ents tuition and fee payments made using public and private grants and
scholarships, The relatively sta gholarshifffliowance amounts between fiscal 2016 and fiscal 2015 are reflective of
the stable enrollments coup : i

fiscal yeat.

was received in 2016 and is teported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Assets. This@iflue reflects payments pm the Foundation®s Capital Catnpaign, as well as a
contribution received from the Fouffdation that was ally pay the College’s cost for its partnership with
Single Stop USA. Single Stop USA is a nonprofit o it delivers services to families nationwide by connecting
students to state and federal financial reso 5 nunity services. The aim is o help students ovetcome
econotnic battiers, continue with their education and i

Gift revenue in the amount of §225 '

Nonoperating Revenues

Of the fundmg appropriation, $23,271 627 was used for operatng budget putposes in 20%
$21,277,040 of the total approptiation was used for operating putposes and $18,346,138 in
investment income was $815,452 in fiscal year 2016, $364,680 in 2015, and $695,167 in 2014. Incj
income for 2016 is an unrealized gain of $368,205 and a realized gain of $2,129 for all investiy
2016.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Capital Appropriations

The State provided gapital funding for debt service and capital purchases in the amounts of $5,3i6,618 and $5,017,352
for fiscal yeats 2 2015, tespectively. The amount received in fiscal year 2014 was $6,109,663. The College used
$7,037,580 of @ity appropriation of §30,309,207 in fiscal year 2016 for debt service and capital purchases. In
fiscal ye. - 4 City appropriations used for debt service and capital purchases were $5,836,028 and
$7,859, :

Expenses by Function
June 30, -

2016 2015 2014

$ 66017583 § 65046544 § 66,209,598

Instruction

Public service . 183,375 64,882 108,954
Reseatch - 20,921 -
Academic support 18,823,708 18,372,027 17,492,238
Student serv;ices 25,142,08 23,493,959 | 22,810,350

Institutional support - o 24,4248 70,565 25,229,115
Physical plant opetations P58 @ 13,335,791 12,585,835
Depteciation 8,860,741 9,697,798 10,490,412
Student aid , 8,739,358 8,210,97 . %80.459,176
Ausxiliaty enterprises 567,452 770,012

Total operating expenses ' $ 167,676896  § 163,444,669  § 166,155,690

Exclusive of Student aid and Depreciation expenses, the College’s operating expenses totaled $150,076,797 in fiscal
2016, $145,535,895 in fiscal 2015, §145,206,102 in fiscal 2014 Septembet 1, 2014 began year four of a five-year labot
contract that was ratified by the union in September 2013.
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Community College of Philadelphia
{A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

In fiscal 2008, the College implemented the GASB 45 accounting standard. This standard requires that the present value
of future post-retirement benefits othet than pensions, projected to be paid to retired employees, be recorded as an
expense in pubic ingtitutions’ financial statements. The value of the expense for fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014 was

$11,631,237, §8

8, and §8,641,201, respectively.

. Expenses by Natural Classifications
June 30,

2016 2015 2014

(In thousands)

EBxpenses:

Salaries $ 77,931 $ 77,161 . § 75,438
Benefits 36,978 35,767 35,885
Contracted setvices 6,458 8,330 9,697
Supplies 3,857 3,073 3,232
Depreciation 8,861 9,698 ' 10,490
Student aid 8,739 8,211 10,459
Other - 13,167 12,815 12,314

GASB 45 & 68 (Other post-employment '
benefits) accrual ' 8,390 - 8,641
Total operating expenses 163,445 166,156

Interest on capital asset-related debt service

4225 4,258

Total nonoperating expenses ' 3,315 4,225 4,258

) $ 17092 § 16 170414

Total expenses

In fiscal year 2016, expenses associated with the College’s operating budget increas&by $413,000 or 0.3%. Total
opetating expenditures ended the year $4.0 million less than budgeted. A number of vacant positions during the year
sesulted in a much higher-than-budgeted lapse salaty savings. Overall, salaries were $1.9 million lower than budgeted.
The fringe benefit budget was positively affected by a favorable year for the medical self-funded propram. Final medical
program costs were almost $600,000 below budget. Administration took advantage of the savings from the salaty and
fringe benefit lines and other expense lines to pay off existing longer-term leases in the amount of $1.6 million. This
strategy provides flexibility in the College’s operating budget for future years. Expenses associated with restricted grants
decteased by $2.5 million, or 1.3%, from the fiscal year 2015. expenses. This decrease was related to the TAACCCT
grant which, in fiscal year 2016, had $3.4 million less expenses than in fiscal year 2015.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Schedule of Fund Balances

hows fund balances in the four fund groups: Untestricted, Restricted, Endowment and Plant. The

The following

2016, 2015 and : onnts reported for unrestricted operations funds were reduced by the impact of GASB 45 and
68 reporting i expense liability for post-employment benefits. The impact of GASB 45 teporting in 2016
was $11,63}4 i ' s $8,016,318, and in 2014 was $8,641,201. The negative untestricted plant fund balance
reflects g i of unfunded depreciation expense. ,
June 30,
2016 2015 2014

Total unrestricted fund $ (34,795,760) $ '(26,92.6,568) $ (16,669,094
Endowment fund:

Quasi endowment (untestricte 1,555,625 1,606,385 1,762,678

Total endowment 55,625 1,606,385 1,762,678

Plant fund: :
Net invested in capital assets 08,775,826 96,978,995 93,771,459
Resttricted expendablé - capital 4,912,257 4742166 4,742,069
Unrestricted (11,069,072)
Total plant fund 87,444,456
' Total net position § 61056940 § 65918950 @ 72538040

Community College of Philadelphia Foundation

The Foundation was established in 1985, Total assets for 2016, 2015 and 2014 were $1; on, $12.1 million, and
$11.8 million, respectively. Total unrestricted net position for 2016, 2015 and 2014 for ffgFoundation was §1.7 million,
$1.7 million, and $1.6 million, respectively. The remaining net position is restricted basetl upon donor intent.

~ Future Impacts

For fiscal year 2017, City fanding to the College was increased by $1.0 million, but the §1.4 million allocation for capital
received for fiscal year 2015-16 was not tepeated. The additional $1.0 million approptiation is somewhat restticted in
that $800,000 must be used fot the establishment of small business training and development efforts, The State budget
included an increase of $768,000. Student tuition remains at $153 per credit hout, and the technology fee was increased
by $2 pet credit hour, from $28 to $30, Additionally, coutse fees were incteased by 15%; this increase ranged from §10
to $45 for those high-cost courses with fees. Credit enrollments for the fall 2016 semester are trending 5% below
enrollments of fall 2015, ' .
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Comsunity Coliege of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphis)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

TJune 30,
Business-type activities Component unit
‘The Community College The Community College
of Philadelphia of Philadelphia Poundation
2016 2015 2016 2015

§ 12,824,547 § 10,323,803 § 609,930 % 191,827

13,684,393 12,396,932 1,312,723 1,164,745
‘ 4,931,453 4,830,003 . 910,861 1,246,209
Receivable 1,408,062 o 2,848,056 - -
Accrued interest seceivable 35,810 47,160 - -
Other assets 1355173 - 1,066,648 . e
"Total cutrent assets 34,239,438 31,512,602 2,833,514 2,602,781
Noticurrent assets:
Endowment investrents (Note B) - 8,976,588 . 8,953,083
Accounts receivable, net (Note C) - * 362,632 609,173
Bond proceeds available for campus construction 5,060 - -
Other long-tetm investments (Note B) i 16,222,800 - -
Capital assets, net (Note D) 174,293,451 - -
‘Total noncutrent assets 9,339,220 9,562,256
Total assets § 225,007,144 12172734, § 12,165,037
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferzed outflows , g 800057 § 543675 ;

{Continued)
See accompanying notes to financial staternents.
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Community College of Philadelphia

(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED

LIABI AN ET POSITION
Current
Acch liabilities (Note E)
Payabl fes (Note G)
Deposits -

Unearned revenue
Current portion of capital lease ob!
Cutrent portion of long-term de
Unamottized bond premivm

Total current lighilities

. Noncurrent liabilities:
Acctued liabilities (Note E)

- Annuity payable

Capital lease obligation (Note F)
Long-tetm debt (Note F)
Unamottized bond premivm

Qthet post-employment benefits liability (Note H)

Total noncusrent liahilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows

Net position:
Ner investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Nonexpendable:
Scholatships, awards dnd faculty chair
Annuities
Expendable:
Scholarships, awards and faculty cheir
Capital projects
Untestticted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

June 30,

Business-type activities Component unit
The Community College ‘The Community College
of Phitadelphia of Philadelphia Foundation
2015

2016 - 2015 2016

$§ 15412294 $ 16517824 § 488,559

$ 308169
61,159 490,637 ; .
545,527 561,301 . ;
2,057,075 2,360,265 939,549 852272
358,836 1,128 414 - ;
6,910,051 6,170,886 - -
573,109 51,170 ] ;
25,918,051 27,280,497 1,428,108 1,250,441
1
1,084,173 - .
- 4,804 4,153
1,580,569 - -
65,021,752 ) -
145,868,338 4,153

$ 171,786,589

$ 183872 % 97,351

$ 1,254,594

98,775,826 96,978,995
- - 6,933,527 6,934,838
- - 1,206 2,571
- . 1,611,597 1,653,576
4912257 4,742,166 468,856 580,500
{42,631,143) (35,802,202) 1,724,636 1,738,958

$ 61,056,940 § 65918959 § 10,739,822

$ 10910443
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Comtmunity -College of Philadelphia
{A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Years ended June 30,
Buginess-type activities Component unit
‘The Community College - The Commmunity College
of Philadelphia of Philadelphia Poundation
2016 2015 2016 ' 2015
$ 59,627,838 § 61,189,190 § - $ -
17,199901 17,317,261 - -
(45,185,037) (46,533,705) - -
Net student tuition and fees - 31,642,702 31,972,755 - -
Auxliaty enterptises 1,740,088 1,785,603 - ;
Gifts - - 553,835 770,634
Other sources 87,288 196,423 135,207 118,048
Total operating revenues 33?470 078, 33,954,781 689,040 888,682
Operating expenses (Note Tk
Educational and general:
Instruction 52,044 40,426
Public service - -
Academic suppott - -
Stmdent services . 2964 ° 37,050
Institutional support 24,429,407 1,647419 1,703,304
Physical plant operations 14,913,188 - -
Depreciation 8,860,741 b - -
Student aid : ’ 8,739,358 8,210,976 4954 308,944
Auxiliaty enterprises 567,452 831,206
Total operating expenses 167,676,896 163,444,669 2,19
Operating loss $ (134,206,818)  § (129,489,888) 9,201y § (1,201,042

{Continued)
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Community College of Philadelphia
{A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - CONTINUED -

Years ended June 30,

Business-type activities Component unit
" The Community College The Community College
of Philadelphia of Philadelphia Foundation
2016 2015 2016 2015
$ 30128328 § 28,631,589 § - $ -
23,271,627 21,271,006 - -
53,551,135 57,870,842 - -
Philadelphia Foundation 225,000 140,848 - (225,000) (140,848)
State grants and contracts 8,278,313 - 7,343,322 - - '
Nengovernmental grants and, 1,456,249 1,521,465 1,541,177 1,624,928
Net investment income %3} 815,452 364,680 22,493 270,135
Interest on capital asset-telated debt se (3,314,912) . (4,224,570) - -
Other noncperating revenues ~ 2579400 0 1,087,072 - -
Net nonopetating revenues 114,006,254 1,338,670 1,754,215
{Loss) gain before other revenues, expenses, . _
gains ot losses "(15,483,634) (170,621) 553,173
Capital appropriations - -
(Decrease) increase in net position {4,862,019) (170,621) 553,173
Net position, beginning of the year 65,918,959 10,910,443 10,357,270

$

$ 10910443

Net posiﬁoﬁ, ending of the year § 61,056,940 $ 65918959

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadeiphiz)

(Business-Type Activities - College only)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended June 30,

2016 2015

$ 32,978,676 $ 31,283,356

(24,955,335) (23,707,061)
(77,393,012) (76,943,418)
(37,613,988) (35,067,726)
(8,739,356) (8,210,976)
1,726,271 1,778,519
87,288 196,423

(113,909,458) (110,670,88%)

Cash flows from noncapital fina
State appropriations 30,096,858 28,641,818
City apptoptiations 23,271,627 21,277,040
Gifts and grants 63,112,709 64,331,404
Other nonopetating 2,563,635 1,187,580
Net cash provided by noncépim! financing activities 119,044,809 115,437,842
Cash flows from capital and related financing activitiet:
State capital appropriations 5,316,618 5,017,352
Clty capital appropriations 7,037,580 5,836,028
Proceeds from long-term debt 52,075,000 -
. (7,475,086) 202,673

(Increase) dectease in bond proceeds available for campus con

Purchases of capital assets
Principal payments on long-tesm debt and amortization of capital leases
Interest payments on long-term debt and capital leases

164,837 (1,217,392)
(52,043,564) (11,839,447)
(3,397,500 (4,308,863)

¢ Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (1,651,788 (6,309,649)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 5,179,375

Purchases of investments (52,279,927)
Interest on inlvcstme.nts 365,582
Net cash (usc'd in) provided by investing activities (982,818 1,265,030
Increase (decrease) in cash 2,500,744’. (277,660%
10,323,803 10,601,463

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
§ 12,824,547 $ 10,323,803

Cash and cash equivalents, ending
(Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements. -
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Cominunity College of Philadelphis
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

(Business-Type Actlvities - College only)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

Years ended June 30,

2016

2015

$ (134,206,818)

$ (129,489,888}

8,860,741 9,697,798

1,353,883 (589,271}

(288,525) 493,218

{15,33% (27,550)

{1,008,866) 1,102,852

Deferred revenues - (290,654 (247,860)

Other post-employmeniixe 11,686,120 8,389,818
Net @h used in operating acti $ £213,909,45§?‘ $ !110,670,883)

Sup-plcmenml disclosure of noncash capi

$ 945,054 $ 280,909

Capital assets acquired via capita] lease

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TJune 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Organizatio

The Co £ Philadelphia (the College) opetates in accordance with the provisions of Commonwealth
of Penit i ponwealth) legislation and through the sponsotship of the City of Philadelphia (the City).
Foy i soses, the College has been determined to be a component unit of the City, and as such
has 2 £ible provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Component

The Community College of 2 dation (the Foundation), was established to serve as an otganization

The by-laws of the Foundation
Incorpotation of the Foundation g
unit of the College, and ali finan

cHE College’s board of trustees the authotity to amend the Articles of
ay time. The Foundation is considered to be a discretely presented component
ansactions are teported within the financial statements of the College.

The accompanying financial statements h: ‘ sing the economic resources measurement focus and
ting principles generally accepted in the United States of

bshen earned and expenses are recorded
s and similar items ate recognized as

America (U.S. GAAP), as prescribed by the GASB.
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing g
tevenue as soon 2s all eligibility requirements have beel

The College has determined that it functions as 2 Business
interfund activity has been eliminated from these financial statéinents.

The College’s policy is to define operating activities in the statement of revenues, expenscSjin
position as those that generally result from exchange transactions such as the payment recgl§ '
payment made for the purchase of goods and services. Cettain other transactions are
activities, ‘These nonopetating activities include the College’s operating and capi
Commonwealth and the City; federal, state, and private grants; net investment inco,
disposals of capital assets. K

propxiauos from the
Gifts; interest expense; and
3. Government Appropriations

Revenue from the Commonwealth and the City is recognized in the fiscal year .during which the funds are

appropriated to.the College. The College is fiscally dependentupon these appropriations. Specific accounting policies
with regard to government appropriations are as follows: : '

{Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Genetal g gis stablishing community colleges provides for the reimbursement of cettain college éxpenses
. ds approptiated for this purpose. Act 46 enacted in July 2005 changed the original basis of

all s to Commonwealth community colleges from a formula approach based upon full-time
equivig fits taught in the cutrent fiscal year to a state-wide community college apptopsiation. Under
Act 46 state U operating budget approptiation for community colleges is to be distributed among each of the
14 colleges e patts: base fungiifferowth funding and high priotity (economic development) program funding,

sute that base opetating funding for each college will at least equal the
Annually, 25% of any new doilars in the operating funding granted
artionally among the colleges experiencing growth in the prior year
#Colleges whose enrollments ate stable ot decline do not receive any

The provisions of Act 46 are
amount of funds received i
community colleges is tq

Development (high priority) progsin
in program ateas defined by the State to con
ptios-year FTE enrollments in targeted
ptopottionate share of the available funds

funding, High rogtam funding is based upon prior year enrollments
by E wortker growth in critical employment areas. Using
¥ allocation mechanism, each college is to teceive 2

For the 2016 and 2015 fiscal yeats, the provisions offifct 46 wete not follhwed in allocating ope::ational funds to
Pennsylvania community colleges.

Under the provisions of Act 46, a sepatate revolving pool was -
Capital funding, which may include majot equipment and fugfigite p , capital imptovements to buildings
and grounds, debt setvice on major capital projects, and net réhtal costs foPeligible capital leases, is reinbursed at
the tate of 50%. Capital costs not previously apptoved for annual funding ate subject to #4 petitive application
process, with the allocation of available funds made by the Pennsylvania Department of Edu

criteria.

~ Any excesses ot deficiencies between provisional payments and the final annual reimby t calculation of annal
Commonwealth funding ate teflected as a payable ot teceivable from the Commonyg

4. Net Position
The College classifies its net position into the following fout net position categories:

Nt investment in oapital assets; Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, tepair, ot improvement of those assets. )

Rastricted - nonexpendable: Net position subject to externally imposed conditions that the College must maintain
them i perpetuity.
(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

biz. Net position whose use is subject to externally imposed conditions that can be fulfilled by

Bhted a policy of generally utilizing restricted - expendable funds, when available, priot to

The College considers Ak etty c
The College considers all shott-te

to be cash equivalents.

and demand deposits with financial banking institutions to be cash.
¥ebtments (ptitarily certificates of deposit) with a maturity of 90 days or less

6.. Investments

Valuations for non-marketable securities are provided
et value as provided by investment managets.

Investments in marketable securities are g
by extetnal investment managers and are up
d similar funds ate teported in the
not expended are included in net

Dividends, intetest and net gains ot losses on invesgifénts of endowm
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in n
_ position categories as follows:

@ as increases in restricted - noncxpendable net position o€ the gift require that they be added to

the principal of a petmanent endowment fund; :
() as increases in restricted - expendable net position if the terms of the gift or the
relevant state law impose restrictions on the current use of the income or net gains;

(iif) as increases in untestricted net position in all other cases.

’s interpretation of

The College policy peemits investments in obligations of the U.S. Treasuty; certificates
rated A-1 by Standard and Poot’s Corpotation or P-1 by Moody’s Commetcial Pap ‘ord; bankers’ acceptances;
reputchase agreements; and the Commonfund’s Intermediate Tetm Fund and Njiilti-Strategy Bond Fund, and
specifically approved fixed income secutities. The investment practice of the Foundation includes the use of PFM
Asset Management as its outsoutced chief investment officet. The Foundation also uses Bryn Mawr Trust as its
custodian of endowment funds. :

7. Capital Assets

Real estate assets, including improvements, ate generally stated at cost. Furnishings and equipment ate stated at cost
at date of acquisition of, in the case of gifts, at fait value at date of donation. Interest costs on debt related to capital
assets are capitalized during the construction period. There wete no capitalized interest costs for the years ended
June 30, 2016 or 2015. ‘

osit; commercial paper

(Continued) -
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Assets are depuibiated using the straight-line method. The range of estimated useful lives by asset categoties is
suminarized,d s . )

10 to 50
31010
10

10

The costs of notmal maintenance
lives are not capitalized.

8. Compensated Absences

Employees eatn the right to be compensat
the amount earned by all eligible employees throug;
employees are entitled to receive payment for this ag
bargaining agteements.

9. ? i d Un ed Revenu

Deposits and advance payments received for tuition and fees réhife nmet programs and tuition received
for the following academic year are deferred and are recorded as revenues when instructionffprovided.

-

A}

ges for vacation leave and sick leave. Accrued vacation is
statement of net position date. Upon retirement, these
d balance as defjged in the College policy and collective

10. Student Fees

Tncluded in student fees are general college fees of §1,475,442 and $1,515,884 for the yeg
2015, respectively, which have been designated for use by the vatious student org :

ded June 30, 2016 and
s and activities.

11. Tax Status

The College generally is exempt from federel and state taxes due to its status as an unincotporated association
established by the Pennsylvania Community College Act of 1963 (the Act). Under the Act, community colieges are
considered to be activities of the Commonwealth.

The Foundation is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(Continued)
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Comimunity College of Philadelpbia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

ue Service (IRS) determined the Foundation is also classified as a public charity under Sections
1)(A)(vi) of the Internal Revenue Code to serve as an organization responsible for College

‘The Intetnal
509(a)(1) 2
fund-tai

assumpfi ct the reportegfinounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial stateli
period. Actual results could dg

Student tuition and fee tevenues, 4 ceitain other revenues from students, ate repotted net of scholarship discounts
revenues, expenses and changes in net position, Scholasship discounts and
en the stated charg ocoods and setvices provided by the College and the
payments on students’ behalf, Certain governmental
ues in the College’s financial statements. To the extent
n and fees and other student chatges, the College has

gtants ate recorded as either operating ot
that vevenues -from such programs are u sat
recotded a scholarship discount and allowance.

14. Self-Insutance

The Community College of Philadelphia Board of Tiustees approg
medical plan through Independence Blue Cross, which becamggs
$225,000 is in place to limit institutional financial exposure for 1<
yeat. The College has established a self-insurance accrued liability account for incutted cla
of claims incurred but not reported. The College’s self-insurance liability at June 30, 2016
and $1,233,369, respectively, based upon an actuarial calculation based upon historical claim ¢

15. Deferred Tnflows of Res

In addition to assets, the Statements of Net Position include a separate section forfiieterred outflows of resources.
‘This sepatate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods
and will not be recognized as an outflow of resoutces until that time. In addition to liabilities, the Statements of Net
Position include a sepatate section for deferted inflows of resources. This sepatate financial statement element
teptesents an acquisition of 2 net position that applies to future petiods and will not be recognized as an inflow of
tesources until that time. The Collége’s deferred outflow/inflow telates to amounts recorded in connection with
GASB Statement No. 68, Awounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (GASB 68), as well as the advance refunding of
the 2008 Series Community College Revenue Bonds in September 2015. '

Sparticipation in. a selfinsurance
tember 1, 2009. A teinsurance limit of
ily latge claims in a policy
s well as an estimate
5 was $1,532,869

. (Continued)
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Commmmity College of Philadelphia -
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE Al- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

g the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions,
y % emation about the fiduciary net position of the State Employees Reétirement System (SERS)
ennsylvania Biiblic School Employees Retirement System (PSERS) and additions to/deductions from the
d PSERS ciary met position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value,

. 72, Fair Value Measurements and Application (GASB 72). This statement
epittitig issues related to fait value measurements and provides guidance for
lents and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. The requirements
ot fiscal petiods beginning after June 15, 2015, As 2 iesult of the adoption of
fed and disclosed all £ [ne measurements. ,

addtesses accounting ang 2
applying fair value to certain inveg
of this statement become effe
GASB 72, the College has dete

% Financial Reporting for Postemployment Bengfity Other Than

t is to improve accounting and finandial reporting for
Hent replaces the requirements of Statement 45, Acvunting
Othsr Than Pensiggafor OPEB. It establishes standards for

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement N
Pensions (GASB 75). The ptimary objective¥ot this
postemployment benefits othet than pensions. This s
and Financial Reporting by Emplayers for Postemployment B
recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outil
This statement also identifies the methods and assumplions that are 1
discount projected benefit payment to theit actuatial present va
employee service. The requirements of this statement are effegpe for &

after June 15, 2017. The College has not completed the proces bf evaluating

sed to project benefit payments,
at present value to petiods of
cial statements for petiods beginning
adopting this statement.

or Stare and Local
f the current
_‘ les (GAAP).
cial statements of state

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76, The Hisrarchy of Generally Accepted Acconnting Prinvg
Governments (GASB 76). The primaty objective of this statement is to identify, in the ¢
govesnmental financial reporting environment, the hierarchy of generally accepted acco
The “GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting principles used to prepare
and Jocal govemnmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the framework for selgiimng those principles. GASB
76 reduces the GAAP hierarchy from four to two categoties of authortitative G and addresses the use of
authotitative and non-authoritative literature in the event that the accounting for a teansaction or other event is not
specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. This statement replaces the requirements of Statement 55, The
Hierarchy of Generally Acospied Accounting Prinoiples for Stats and Lacal Govsrnments. The requirements of this statement are
effective for financial statements for periods beginning aftet June 15, 2015. The adoption of this statement did not
result in any significant changes to the College’s financial statements.

(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

is statement is to imptove financial reporting by clatifying the financial statement presentation
- component units. This statement amends the blending requirements established in
t No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended, ‘The additional criterion requires
unit incotporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is the
The additional ctiterion does not apply to component units included in the financial
‘ t to the pmvisions of Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
cittements of this stz t ate effective for financial statements for petiods beginning after June 15,

giortiarice with the Boatd of Trustees’ investment policy, which authorizes the
College to invest in cash equivalenf€ivhich consist of treasuty bills, money market funds, commetcial paper, bankets’
and certificates of ‘deposit; fixed income securities including U.S. govetnment

- bonds, floating rate securities and Yankee notes and
trategy Bond Fund and Commonfund Intermediate
ets apply. Investments in all classifications seek to
for the College while avoiding excessive risk. Specific
anticipated cash needs and the preservauon of ptincipal.
t potentlal latge pains to achieve a
curities, commodities and futures

and agency securities, corporate 0% ¢
bonds; and mutual funds including the Commo
Fund. Regardless of fund clasmﬁcauons ety
maintain significant liquidity and mas .
objectives include maintaining sufficient hquldlty to

reasonable risk posture, Certain investments are prg
conttacts, ptivate placements, options, limited partne¥shi
estate, short selling, margin transactions and certain derivative jif 5. Divejtification, insofat as it reduces
portfolio tisk, is required. At least annually, the Board of Trusteg
to determine any apptroptiate revisions.

Operating funds may be invested only in corporate bonds rated at a minimum A- by Standar Poot’s or A3 by
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc, (Moody’s) that are of U.S. dollar denomination. Investmengd

mortgage-backed bonds are limited to those tated AAA/Aaa. Investments in commercial pg ted A1/P1
or better. The maximum petcentage of investments in any one sector is limited to 100386 - U.S. govermnent and
agency, 25% for asset-backed bonds, 40% for corporate notes and bonds, and 25% f@##fiortgage-backed bonds.

Deposits are comptised of demand deposit accounts with financial institutions. At both June 30, 2016 and 2015,
cash on hand was $4,600. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the carrying amount of deposits was $12,820,547 and
$10,319,803, and the bank balance was $14,392,582 and §10,964,508, respectively. The differences were caused
ptimatily by items in transit. Deposits of $750,000 were covered by federal depository insurance of $250,000 for
each of four bank accounts at both June 30, 2016 and 2015,

I

(Continuéd)



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES 10 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~- CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

iafthe fair value of deposits and investments at June 30, 2016:

U.S. government
Corporate and fo
Intermediate fixed income
Equity rmutual fund
Multi-strategy bond mutua
Money market mutual funds
Private teal estate

Total deposits and investments

Deposits:
Demand deposits

Investments:
Insured money matket deposit
U.S. Treasury obligations
“U.S. government agency obligations
Corporate and foreign bonds
Intermediate fixed income tutual fund
Equity mutual fund
Muldi-strategy bond mutual fund
Money matket mutual funds
Private real estate

‘Total deposits and investments

College Foundation
$§ 12,820,547 § 609,930
1,054 -
4,305,938 387,939
2,183,361 -
4,451,055 -
5,501,105 2,905,649
- 5,417,737
5,274,992 -
8,715,847 1,312,723
- 265,263

43,753,809

$ 10,809,241

Foundation

§ 10,319,803

206,25

5,487,189
5,218,290
7,367,335

2,266,546
5,815,402
1,164,745

270,639

$ 38,939,535

$ 10,309,655

(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia) .

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT_INUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015 -

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Tn addition to fhig,deposits and investments listed above, the College also has bond proceeds available for campus

i B Sovereigh Bank, the State Public School Building Authority, and the Bank of New Yotk (the

- of various bond indentures. Bond proceeds available for campus construction are cattied

ts at fair value and consist of short-term investments and government securities. As of
ond proceeds available for campus construction include the following:

2016 2015

Construction funds $ 7480046 % 5,060

The Collépe’s investmen us risks. Among these tisks are custodial credit risk, credit risk, and

Custodial credit risk is the tisk thalith the event of a bank failure, the College’s deposits may not be returned to the
College. The College does not hayighh deposit policy for custodial credit sisk. Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Act 72
of 1971, as amended, allows ban¥ing institutions i & collateralization tequirement by pooling eligible
investments to cover total public funds on de gx f federal insurance. Such pooled collateral is pledged
with the financial institutions’ trust depat o

2015

. Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank’s trust ‘ :

department notin the College’s name 20,547 - § 10,319,803
The College participates in the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Setvice (CDARS) for i ificates of deposit
and Insured Cash Sweep (ICS). CDARS and ICS allow the College to access Federal Deposit Iy
(FDIC) insurance on multi-million dollar certificates of deposit and money market deposjif§couiiihio carn rates
that compate favorably to treasuries and money market mutual funds. Custodial credit Hlimi
the College’s certificates of deposit as 2 result of its patticipation in the CDARS prog

Credit tisk is the risk that an issuer ot other counterparty to an investment will not tulfill its obligations. The credit
sisk of a debt instrument is measured by nationally recognized statistical rating agencies such as Moody’s.

{Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

‘The multi-s
Commonfuggh

bond fund and the intermediate fized income fund are mutual funds managed by the
edit quality of the investments that comprise these funds are:

June 30, 2016

Multi-Strategy
Bond Intetmediate
"18% 25%
24 ’ 22
9 - 22
5 6
14 14

Non-rated/Qthet

Total

Governtnent
Agency

AAA

AA

A

BBB -
Below BBB
Non-rated /Other _ 5 -

Total 100% 100%

{Continued)

31



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

f the fizxed income investments in which the College directly invests, including U.S. Treasury
ent agency obligations and corporate bonds, is as follows:

Tune 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
- Pized Fixed
income ihcome
secutities ' securities
Aaa 59% : 64%
Aa 11 9
A 13 14
Baa 17 ‘ 13
Total 100% 100%

will adversely affect the fait value of fixed income
f specifically address limitations in the maturities of
pe’s fized income investments at June 30, 2016 and 2015 -

Interest rate tisk is the risk that changeiffss
investments. The College’s investment policy do
_ investments. The weighted average maturities of the
are a8 follows:

~

June 30, 2015
Weighted
average

maturity tutity
ears
U.S. Treasuty obligations , 3.93 4.27
U.S. government agency obligations 3.45 2.56
Cotporate bonds 411 513

The College categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by U.S. GAAP. The
hieratchy is based on the valuation inputs nsed to measure the fait value of the asset. Level 1 inputs ate quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant othet obsetvable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.

(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphis)

NOTES T'O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED -

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

: following tecurting fair value measutements as of June 30, 2016:

sured money market deposits, U.S. Treasury bb!igaﬁons, U8, govetnment agency
v matket mutval funds of $28,026,747 are valued using quoted matket prices (Level 1

bonds of $4,451,055 are valued using a matrix pricing model (Level 2 inputs) while the
fited income mu nd and the multi-strategy bond mutual fund totaling §10,776,097 ate valued
at the net asset value (NAV) glipshigh(or its equivalent) of the investments (Level 2 inputs). :

The Foundation has the fi

Demand deposits, UY, Treas ;
ate valued using quoted market

the investments (Level 2 inputs).

Private real estate funds and equity mu
of the investments (Level 3 inputs).

The valuation method fot investments measured at . ivalent) is presented in the following
" table.
Tnvestments Measured at NAV
(§ in millions) )
Redemption
Fair Unfunded h, Notice
Value Commitments ¥ Period
Intermediate fixed income mutual funds o) $ 84 _ - Wlonthly 30 days
‘Mult-strategy bond mutual funds @ 5.3 - Weekly 7 days -
Equity routual fund @ 0.5 - Quatterly 60 days
Private real estate fund @ _ 0.3 o N/A N/A
Total investments measured at NAV $ 145
(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia -
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

&

@

Mubi-Stategy Bond Muiw

 Intermediate Boeed Income Mutwal Funds. The investment objective of the Multi-Strategy Bond Fund is to offet an

S, multi-managet investment program that will provide broad exposure to global debt matkets.
vahie above the tetutn of the broad U.S. bond market as measured by the Barclays Capital
ndex, net of fees, and to provide competitive retuns telative to the Russell U.S, Cote Phus
ise. The fund’s sisk characteristics will vary from those of the index due to its diversified
ks outside of the index, including below investment grade debt and international bond and
¢ fait values of the investments in this type have been determined using the NAV per shate

estment objective of the Intermediate Term Fund is to produce a total
of Ametica Mettill Lynch 1-3 Year Treasury Index, but attaches
a higher cusrent yield than short-tetm fmoney market investments in 2
iegative total return over any 12-month period. The fair values of the
n determined using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the investments.

return in excess of i
greater emphasis tqilf
manner that mitigatés the chag

Jti-manager, multi-strategy hedge fund of funds, The
beta and volatility compared to traditional asset classes
estments in this type have been determined using the

Eguity Mutwal Fund. The Titar§
fund has an absolute retutn objective and t
(e.g, Equity and Fixed Income), The fai
NAY per share (ot its equivalent) of

Private Real Estate Fund. Equus Capital Partners’
real estate segments throughout the U.S. It is a
with regional ownet-operatorts through joint ven
to be fully diversified across all major propetty types and acrosg
integtated platform, from deal sourcing, through acquisiti
tenovation, repositioning and exit. The fund includes
recousse to the fund level. The fait values of the investments in
pet share (ot its equivalent) of the investments.

value-add properties across all major
ity positions and does not partner
ity upside profits, The fund aims

io management, property management,
pe on its acquisitions, with no debt
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Community College of Philadelphia
{A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE C - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

~ Accounts tecei include the following at June 30;

2016 2015
Component N Component
unit uhit
College Foundation College Foundation
7,384351 $ - $ 7694272 % -
Grants receivable 74,818 52,710 71,783 660,060
Other receivables 434,641 631,977 1,287,937 122988
Pledges receivable™ - ' 640,473 - 1,164,430
Receivable from Foundation 429,804 - 316,686 -
9,323,614 1,325,160 9,370,678 - 1,94-7',478

Tess allowance for doubtful -
accounts (51,667) (4,540,675) (92,096)
Total 1273493 § 4830003 § 1,855,382

The College anticipates that all of its net accounts refigfrable will be ¢ in one year.

Accounts receivable, tiition and fees and other are reported at e value¥Accounts ate written off when
they are determined to be uncollectible based upon managerne of individual accounts. The allowance
for doubtful accounts is estimated based on the College’s historical losses and petiodic revieggof individual accounts.
The allowance was $4,392,161 and $4,540,675 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, ; tively. $362,632 of
the Foundation’s pledges receivable are expected to be collected subsequent to June 30, 2016 glly on a five-year
payment schedule.
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Community College of Philadelphia

(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

| NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTED - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets copsist of the following at June 30, 2016:

Balance Retirements Balance
July 1, and June 30,
y 2015 Additions adjustiments 2016
Capitg ciated ' )
Lan ents $ 29206260 $ 1,365,834 § - $ 30,572,004
Construction in progtess 193,754 2,501,050 (2,193,270) - 501,534
Works of art 705,208 82,500 - 787,708
30,105,222 3,949,384 (2,193,270) - 31,861,336
Capital assets being depreciated: :
Buildings and improvements 233,051,875 549,541 - 233,601,416
Equipment and funiture 35,988,926 1,576,731 (105,964) 37,459,693
Libtaty books 143,670 - 5,277,591
Mictoforms - - 1,671,710
Software - oo 4,039,594
System software 91,266, (751,417) . 7,454,942
Total befose depreciation (857,381) 289,504,946

§ 318,106,341

¥3,050,651) § 321,366,282

Accumulated dépreciation by asset categoties is summatized as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, _ Pune 30,
2015 Depteciation Reti 2016
Bm'ldings and improvements $ 101,085,869 § 585915 ¢ $ 106,945,025
Equipment and furniture 28,547,457 2,758,106 (98,533) 31,207,030
Libraty books 4,314,394 147,462 - 4,461,856
Microforms 1,668,715 2,455 - 1,671,170
Softwate 3,438,604 - - 3,438,604
System software 7,757,851 ‘ 93,562 (751,417) 7,099,996
Total § 146,812,800 § 8860741 §  (849,950) 154,823,681

Net capital assets $ 166,542,601

(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Juse 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

Capital assets ist of the following at June 30, 2015:
A Balance Retirements Balance
July 1, and June 30,
2014 Additions adjustments 2015

§ 20054933 $ 15127  § - - $ 29,206,260
351,752 663,880 (821,878) 193,754
705,208 - - 705,208
0,111,893 815,207 (821,878) 30,105,222

Capital assets being depreciated:

" Buildings and improvements 232,527,699 524,176 - 233,051,875
Equipment and futniture 877,431 . (1,521,343) 35,988,9_25
Libtary books 115,244 oo 5,133,921
Microforms - - 1,671,710
Software 4,039,594
System software 8,115,093

“Total before depreciation 288,001,118
$ 318,117,503 $ 318,106,340

Accumulated depreciation by asset categories is summarized as follows:

Buildings and improvements
Equipment and furnitare
Libraty books

Microforms

Softwate

System softwate

Total

Net capital assets

Balance . Balance
July 1, Plune 30,
2014 Depteciation 2015
$ 95185374 § 5900495 § - $ 101,085,369

26,821,243 3235678  (1,509,464) 28,547,457
4,165,027 149,367 - 4,314,394
1,664,224 4,491 - 1,668,715
3,429,162 9,442 - 3,438,604
7,359,525 398,325 - 7,757,850

§ 138,624,555 § 9697798  § (1,509,464 146,812,889

57
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Cotnmunity College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphis)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE E - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payaifhand accrued liabilities consisted of the following at June 30:

" Category:

Vendots and others ‘

Accrued salaties
Acctued benefits

Compensated absences
Retirement incentive paymen
Payroll withholding taxes

- Accrued interest

Payable to College -

Total

2016 2015
Component Component
unit unit
College Foundation College Foundation
6,768,024  § 58,754 § 787,185 § 81,482
3,478,599 - - 2,959,758 -
2,251,943 - 2,201,264 - -
3,021,805 - 2,928,054 -
339,756 - 1,120,033 -
479,79 R 255,960 -
: - 265,743 -
429,805 . - 316,687
488,559,  $ 17,601,997 § 398,169

§ 15,412,294
61,159
358,836
6,910,051
573,109

Beginning ending
2016 balance Additiens Deductions Al
Long-term liabilities: %

Accrued liabilities $ 17,601,997 § 76,539 § (1,106,373) $ 572,163
Payable to government agencies 490,637 - {429,478 61,159
Capital lease obligation 2,708,983 - (1,684,13 1,024,846
Long-term debt 71,192,638 2,660,627 - 73,853,265
Unamortized bond premium 417894 6,826,143 - 7,244,037
Other post-employment

benefits 58,227,563 12,200,754 - 70,428,317

$ 150,639,712 § 21,764,063 § (3,219,988) § 169,183,787 § 23,315,449

(Continued)
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(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE E - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES - Continued

Long-term labi}iflsactivity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Total
Beginning ending Cutrent
balance Additions Deductions balance portion

Loﬁg—term ‘

Accrued liabilities 579287 § 1,393,064 $  (370,354) § 17,601,997 § 16,517,824

Payable to government agetn - (2,534,840) 490,637 490,637
Capital lease obligation - {5,270,053) 2,708,983 1,128,414
Long-term debt % - (6.288,485) 71,192,638 6,170,886
Unamortized bond premium - (51,168) 417,894 51,170
Other post-employment .

 benefits - 58,227,563 -

066 § (145149000 $ 150,639,712 $ 24,358,931

' :NO'I’E F- DEBT

The College’s debt financing is primarily provided*firough Commugigs ge Revenue Bonds issued by the
Hospitals and Higher Education Facilities Authority and the State ‘Hiilding Authority.

Debt consisted of the following at June 30, 2016:

Balance Principal BalanC
July 1, 2015 Additions payments  June 30, 20

Cutrent
portion

2006 Serdes $ 540,000 § - § (3550000 $ $ 185,000
2007 Series - 16,295,000 - {2,160,000) #135,000 2,270,000
2008 Series - 51,465,000 - (45,425,000) 6,040,000 2,930,000
2015 Series - 52,075,000 (655,000) 51,420,000 345,000
SPSBA Loan 226,596 -, (211,690) 14,906 14,903
SPSBA Loan 826,788 - (316,463) 510,325 367,963
SPSBA Loan 1,839,254 - (291,220) 1,548,034 297,185

$ 71,192,638 § 52,075,000 $ (49,414,373) § 73,853,265 § 6,910,051

{Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia .
(A Component Unit of the City'of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE F - DEBT - Continued
e following at June 30, 2015
Balance Principal Balance ' Carrent

July 1, 2014 Additions payments  June 30, 2015 pottion

g
g
<

$§ (340000) $ 540,000 § 355,000
(2,055,000) 16,205,000 2,160,000
- (@,675000) 51465000 2,795,000

2008 Series

SPSBA Loan - (245,332) - -
SPSBA Loan - (280,427) 226,596 208,993
SPSBA Loan ey - (407,349) 826,788 360,673
SPSBA Loan 2,124,631 - (285377) 1,839,254 291,220

481,123 §

$ (6,288,485 § 71,192,638 § 6,170,886
6 ate as follows:

_Interest Total

June 30:

2017 ' § 6910051 § 10,554,896
. 2018 6,810,633 10,066,509

2019 6,229,480 9,120,407

2020 | 6,515,817 2,606,090 )

2021 6,802,284 2,307,823

2022 ‘ © 6,800,000 1,997,050

2023 7,125,000 1,672,810

2024 . 5,525,000 1,333,000

2025 5,590,000 1,066,750 6,656,750

2026 4,995,000 787,250 5,782,250

2027 5,245,000 537,500 5,782,500

2028 5,505,000 275,250 ° 5,780,250

$ 73,853,265 $ 22,375,171 $ 96,228,436

(Continued)
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(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE F - DEBT - Continued

dated September 15, 2006 with the State Public School Building Authority (the Aunthotity),
000,000 of 2006 Seties Community College Revenue Bonds. Of the total obligation,
ferred maintenance including roof repairs (Bonnell, West, Gymnasium, Winnet Building
egional Center); extetior brick repairs (Winnet Building and Gymnasium); and 16th Street
' e College also received $50,000 from the Authority that was applied to issuance cost. The
d to be repaid o 10-year petiod through June 20, 2017 at the interest rate of 4.5%; with an

4 loan agreement are as follows:

Principal _
§__185.000
2. 2007 Series
Under a loan agreement dated Februaty " 2007QigkAthe State Public School Building Authority, the College

pottowed $30,525,000 of 2007 Community College Refiifiding Revenue Bonds. Of the total obligation, §30,525,000
(including bond premium net of bond discount and issgigfice cost of $449,788kavas used to purchase U.S. government
secutities, which were deposited in an itrevocable uto provide for future debt service
payments on the 1998 Seties Bonds and 2001 Series Bonds. As a rg q of the 1998 Seties Bonds and
2001 Seties Bonds was considered to be defeased. The 1998 and B4 Awete called as of November 1,
2011, and the related escrow with the trustee of the defeased is zersghe 2007 Series Bonds are payable ovet
16Y yeats at rates from 4.00% to 5.00%, with an average anm debt servic® payment of $2,602,675.

Principal paym;ants required by the loan agreement are as follows:

Principal
2017 : : §  2,270,00

2018 . 2,385,
2019 1,750,000
2020 , 1,820,000
2021 1,885,000
2022-2025 4,025,000
$ 14,135,000 .
(Continued)

41



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015
NOTE F - DEBT - Continued
3,
Under 2 Lot reilinent dated October 9, 2008 with the State Public School Building Authotity, the College
borrow: ¢ 2008 Series Community College Revenue Bonds. The bonds were issued for the benefit
of thei& aniea project cosisting of: () the construction, equipping and furnishing of an approximately
45 budiling for instructional facilities and student meeting spaces on the main campus of the College,

ccts telated thereto; (b) the renovation and expansion of administrative buildings for the
i main.campus of the College; (c) the expansion of the campus facilities
bter of the College in Northeast Philadelphia; and (d) the payment of costs
' bonds. The College also received $50,000 from the State Public School
ce cost. The bonds ate scheduled to be repaid over a 20-year petiod
3.00% to 6.25%, with an average annual debt setvice payment of .
ally refinanced in September 2015 with the 2015 Seties Bonds.

comptising the Northeast Regio
and expenses incident to the i
Building Authortity that
through June 15, 2028
- $6,064,257. The 2008 82

tember 10, 2015, between the State Public School Building Authotity and the
75,000 of 2015 Seties Community College Revenue Bonds to advance refund a
gl s (Community College of Philadelphia Project), Series

Projects consist of the following: (1) Renovating the
in the College’s West Building; and (3) Various other
regoing components of the 2015 Capital Projects will be
unity college buildings in furtherance of its educational
85 to 5%, with an average debt setvice

th an average debt service payment

Under 2 Loan Agreement dated
College, the College borrowed §
pottion of the Authority’s Commyis
of 2008 and additional 2015 Capital Projects.
College’s biology labs; (2) Replacing certajgiich
renovations, repairs and capital imptovements.
used in connection with the College’s operation of it

payment of $4,166,000. The unrefunded series of 200
of §2,415,000. -

Remaining principal payments fot the 2015 Series Bonds and

Series of 2008 Bonds required by the
loan agreement ate as follows: - :

(

2017 $ 3,775,000

2018 3,980,000
2019 4,170,000
2020 4,380,000
2021 4,595,000
2022 : 4,830,000
2023 ' 5,070,000
2024 5,325,000
2024-2028 ' 21,335,000

$ 57,460,000

(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelplﬁa
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE F - DEBT - Continued

, dated July 15, 2011 with the State Public School Building Authority, the College borrowed

e of completing the build out of 7,291 square feet of space to be leased acjacent to the
nter. The foan is scheduled to be repaid over a five-yeat period through July 15, 2016 at
of 3.00%, with an average annual debt service payment of $216,899.

al payments re by the loan ag:teemént are as follows:

Princigal
$ 14,906

5. Revolving Loan Obligation

Under 2 loan agreement dated J&
bortowed $1,800,000 for the purpose of ¢
instramentation lab and the associated pg
scheduled to be tepaid over a five-yeat pe
with an average annual debt setvice payment of $377,

2017
2018 142,362
$ -510,325
6. Revolvin igation

Undet a loan agreement dated Apsil 1, 2013 with the State Public School Building Authority, the College botrrowed
$2,400,000 for the putpose of tenovations to several spaces in the West Building on the College’s Main Campus to
address ctitical programmatic needs. The loan is scheduled to be repaid over a five-year period through November 1,
2020 at a fixed annual intetest rate of 2.027%, with an average annual debt service payment of §325,551.

{Continued)
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NOTE F - DEBT - Continued

TJune 30, 2016 and 2015

Remaining pringlipal payments required by the loan agreement are as follows:

7. Operating Leases
‘The College leases certain equip

tespectively.

Futute minimum lease payments required under opetaf

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

8. Capital Teases

ent and prope
Rental expense for opetating leases was $730s

Princigal

) 297,184
303,269
309,480
315,817
322,284

$§ 1,548,034

ating lease arrangements that expire through 2021,
,683 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,

171,543

$ 1,927,835

The CoklegeAleases certain equipment under capital lease arrangements that expite through 2021. These leases are
recotded at the lower of cost or present value and amounted to $1,024,846 and $2,708,983 at June 30, 2016 and
2015, respectively. Amortization charges of capital leases were $1,919,844 and $2,232,948 for the years ended June

30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

(Continued)
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE F - DEBT - Continued

ease payments under capital Jeases ate as follows:

Principal - Interest Total

$ 358836  $ 29,067 § 387,903

272,897 19,651 292,548
10,738 253,176

3,168 131,085

453 23211

$ 63,077 $ 1,087,923

following at June 30: )
2015
(Payable) - Receivable
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:
Provision for potential audit
findings and reimbussement
calculation $ (17,2260 § : (48,716) § -
" Grants and special projects - 968,015 - 335,095
PHEAA for grants {29,190) - (441,921)
' (46,416} 968,015 (490,637)
City of Philadelphia grants
receivable - 15,602 183,214
Federal: '
Financial 2id programs (1,906) 10,243 - 167,839
Grants and special projects (12,837) 414,202 - 2,161,908
(14,743) 440,047 - 2,512,961
Total _ $ (61,159) § 1,408062 §  (490,637) § 2,848,056
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

ive authoﬂty. The ﬁnancial statements for PSERS and SERS can be

ueg, PA 17108-0125; and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, State
d Stieet, P.O. Box 1147, Harrisburg, PA 17108-1147.

efits. For PSERS, tetirement benefits are determined
as 2% or 2.5% (depending on membetshi
yeats of credited service. After completio
and eady retirement may be elected. Individuals-are
yeats of credited setvice. Such disability benefits ate g
of the member’s final average salaty multiplied by 4

for disability retirement benefits after completion of five
ally equal to 2% te#2.5% (depending on membership class)

are payable upon the death of an active member who has reache ¢ _
Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that woyl@gt fective if the member had retired on
the day before death.

For SERS, retitement benefits are determined at 2% or 2.5% (depending on membership
year average salary times the number of years of service. The vesting petiod is cithet 5 or 1
membetship date) of credited service.

Contributions

For PSERS, the contribution policy is set by state statutes and requires contributions by active membets, employets
and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Funding percentages are determined by the plan in accordance with
actuarial calculations and are based on coveted payeoll. Custently, for full time faculty, administratots and other staff,
the College contributes 10.7% of all eatnings as long as contributions are adequate to accumulate assets to pay
retiremnent benefits when due. Employee contributions ate 6.5% of all earnings for members priot to July 22, 1983
and 7.5% of all earnings fof members after July 22, 1983.

(Continued)
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NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Conﬁnued

For SERS, the ghntribution policy is set by state statutes and tequires contributions by active members, employers
salth of Pennsylvania. Funding percentages are determined by the plan in accotdance with
are based on covered payroll, Curtently, for full time faculty, administrators and other staff,
9.92% of all eatnings as long as contributions are adequate to accumulate assets to pay
due, Employee contributions ate 6.25% of all earnings.

At June 30, 2016, the College rg
pension liability for PSERS

jability of $1,386,000 and §1,998,201 for its proportional share of the net
Hiigctively. The net Pensxon liability was measured as of June 30, 2015 for
SERS wnd the total pension habihty used to calculate the net pension I:ablhty

contributions of all participating fi8titutions, actuatially detezmined. At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2015
of PSERS and SERS was 0.0032% and 0.0110%.

oporuonal pension expense for PSERS and SERS of

$203,000 and $297,780, respectively, as s’ actuarial schedules, At ]une 30, 2016, the College

reported deferred outflows of resoutces fefer ws of resoutces telated to pensions from the following
sources: '
PSERS " Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 6,000
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 3,000
Changes in propottion and differences beween College '

contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Toml .8 304 9,000

(Continued)
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NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENFEFITS - Continued

Deferred Deferred

Qutflows of Inflows of
" Resources Resources
fpected and actual experience ' $ 40461 % -
. ‘ 59,367 -
actual eatnings )
203,455 -
en College '
ntributions 274,243 174,872

_$ 577526 § 174872

ed a liability of $1,030,000 and §1, 784 684 for 1ts proporuonal shate of the net

' ension Hability was measuted s of June 30, 2014 for
fsion liability used to calculate the net pension liability
College’s proportion of the net pension liability is based
ibutions to the pension plan relative to the projected
determined. At Jprie 30, 2014 and December 31, 2014,
was 0.0026%45860.0120%.

pension liability for PSERS and SER
PSERS and Decembet 31, 2014 for SERS, ag
was detemuncd by an actuatial valuauon :

exp‘:ense for PSERS and SERS
¥ At June 30, 2015, the College
ated to pensions from the following

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the College recognized the pr
of $90,000 and $283,500, respectively, as provided by the plangg
reported deferred ontflows of tesources and deferred inflows
sources:

PSERS : " Deferred | rred
Ontflows of ;

Resources 48 Resoutces

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments $ - L 74,000
Changes in proportion and differences beween College '
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 132,000 -
Total $ 132,000. $ 74,000
(Continued)
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NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Continued

contributions and propo:

Total

Actuarial Assumprions

The following methods and ass

PSERS
Actuatial cost method
Investment rate of return

Salary increases

Mortality rates

SERS
Actuatial cost method

Amottization method

Investment rate of teturn

htions wete used i
These methods and assumptions were applied

Juae 30, 2016 and 2015

Deferted Defetrted -

Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
$ 9,688 $ -
1,565 -
ontributions - 350,422 23,351

$ 361,675 $ 23,351

yarial valuations for the yeat ended Juae 30, 2016.
cluded in the measurement:

entry age no evel % of pay

7.50%, includes inflation at

effective average of 5.5¢% which¥gflects an allowance fot inflation of 3%,
real wage growth of 1% ‘and merit of Seniority incregges of 1.5%

based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuitaf
female) with age set back three years for both males 2
annuitants the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Tabl
age set back seven years for males and three y

ables (male and
. For disabled

entry age

straight-line amortization of investments over five years and amortization of
assumption changes and noninvestment gains/losses over the average
expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided benefits

7.50% net of expenses including inflation

(Continued)
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Continued ‘
increases average of 5.70% with range of 3.85% - 9.05% including inflation
2.75%

proj ectcd RP-2000 Mortality Tables adjusted for actual plan experience and
futute improvement

- adjustments

The following methods and
These methods and ass !

PSERS

Actustial cost method

Investment rate of retutn

Salary increases ' .5%, which reflects an allowance for inflation of 3.0%,

Mortality rates eglthy Annuitant Tables (male and
males and females, For disabled
ables (male and female) with
d three years for females.:
SERS
Actuarial cost method entty age
Amottization method straight-line amottization of investments over fiv: #ortization of
agsumption changes and noninvestment nsses over the avetrage
expected remaining service lives of all emplgipf that are provided benefits
Investment rate of return 7.50% net of expenses including inflatton
Projected salaty increases  average of 6.10% with range of 4.30% - 11.05% including inflation
Inflation 275%
Mottality rate © projected RP-2000 Mortality Tables ad]usted for actual plan expetience and
future itnprovement
Cost of living adjustments ad hoc
{Continued)
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE H - EMPL.OYEE BENEFITS - Continued

PSERS

The long_## | real fate of return on pension investments is determined using a building-block method in
ges of expected future real rates of teturn are developed for each majot asset class. These
roduce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of
: allocation petcentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best
estimnatd f return are summatized in the following table:

Long-term
Target expected tate
allocation of return

- 22.50% 4.80%
Private Matkets B 15.00% 6.60%
Private Real Esta 12.00% 4.50%
Global Fixed Income’ 7.50% 2.40%
U.S. Long Term Treasurie 3.00% 1.40%
TIPS ‘ 1.10%
High Yield bonds 3.30%
Cash 0.70%
Absolute Return 4,90%
‘Risk Pasity 3.70%
MLPs/Infrastructure 5.20%
Commodities 3.10%
Financing (LIBOR) 10%

Total 100.00%

(Continued)
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NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Continued

SERS

Some of gl metho §land assumptions mentioned above are based on the 17 Investigation of Actuarial Experiencs,
which, ifffanuary 2011 and analyzed experience from 2006 through 2010. The long-texm expected real
ratggs investments is determined using a building-block method in which best estimates of tanges

tes of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
€d rate of return by weighting the expected futute tates of retutn by the target asset allocation
v adding expect ationt. ‘The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return are

Long-Term
& Target Expected Rate

Asset Class Allocation of Return

Alternative Investments 15.00% 8.50%
Global Public Equity 40.00% 5.40%
Real Assets o 17.00% 4,95%
Divetsifying Assets 10.00% 5.00%
Fixed Income 1.50%
Non-rated/Other 0.00%

Total
For PSERS and SERS, the discount rate u;ed to. measure tot#¥pension iy was 7.5%. The projection of cash

flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members wig
contribution fate and that contributions from employets will be made at contractually reqd
determined, Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was proj
make all projected future benefit payments of cusrent plan members. Therefore, the lo
return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments ¢
lighility.

tates, actuarially
be available to

Sensitivity of the Net Position Liability

" For PSERS, the College’s net pension liability is §1,386,000 using a 7.5% discount rate. The College’s net pension
liability would have been $1,708,489 assuming a 1% point decrease (6.5%) in the discount rate and would have been
41,115,113 assuming a 1% point increase (8.5%) in the discount rate. :
Fort SERS, the College’s net pension Jiability is §1,998,201 using a 7.5% discount rate. The College’s net pension
liability would have been $2,482,142 assuming a 1% poiat decrease (6.5%) in the discount raté and would have been
$1,583,248 assuming a 1% point increase (8.5%) in the discount rate.

(Continued)

52



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

 June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Continued

‘The Colleg] $iliors one defined contribution plan, and as such, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed
: i nt eatnings. Full-time faculty and administrative employees are eligible to patticipate from
and clerical employees have a one-year waiting period. Participation is mandatory for
fministrative employees upon teaching the age of 30 or after two years of employment,

which . date. Patticipation is mandatory for full-time classified and confidential employees upon
reaching TR 0 ot after four yfigs of employment, whichever is the later date. Patt-time faculty may participate
after earning four seniority uni Bfined in the collective batpaining agreement. College policy and collective’
bargaining agreements tequitg employee and the College contribute amounts, as set forth below, based

The College’s contribu
Death benefits in the amount of
who dies prior to retirement. Va

in this program. .

Aplovee (and interest allocated to the employee’s accounts) ate fully vested.
present value of accumulation are provided to the beneficiary of a participant
s payment options ate available. The College has 1,227 employees patticipating

65,256,751 and $65,534,082; and the College’s total
2015, respectively. Contributions made by the College
691,129, respectively, representing 8.94% and 8.68%,
buted §4,906,108 and §4,794,327, respectively, during fiscal

The payroll for employees covered by the ff
payroll is $78,702,353 and §77,987,146 af3giHc 303
during fiscal 2016 and 2015 totaled §5,832,078
respectively, of covered payroll. College employees co
2016 and 2015. A summaty of retitement benefits fo]

of loyee

Full-time faculty -10%pof base contract
Visiting lecturers 5% of base cont:
Part-time faculty . 5% of all earnings
Administrators and other staff 10% of base contra
Others 10% of annual sa
Employee contribution 5% of base salyff

3. Other Post-employment Benefits Liability

The College’s Retirement Benefits Plan is a single-employer plan, which offers board-authotized post-employment
benefits, other than pension, to eligible retirees. The plan provides post-retirement medical, pteseription drug, dental
and life insurance benefits. The plan is unfunded, and no financial teport is prepared. These benefits ate accounted
fot in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, Acwunting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-cmiployment
Bengfits Other Than Pensions. '

(Continued)
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NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Continued

Funding
The confat rements of plan membets and the College are established and may be amended by the
Colle, es. The plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis (i.e., premiums ate paid to fund the health

cutrent retirees). The College paid premiums of $2,765,425 and $2,542,581 for the fiscal
yea® 6 and 2015, respectively. Total retiree contributions made by plan members were §870,799
and § cal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. '

d as part of the 2003 federal law that created the Medicate prescription
urage employers to tetzin the presctiption benefits offered to
oyets that retain prescription drug coverage for retitees that is at least
¥e a subsidy from the U.S. government equal to 28% of the employer’s
pe, The College received payments of §237,252 for the year ended June

The Retiree Drug Subsidy (RD

drug program and was
Medicare-eligible retirees.

annual drug costs that Fall within
30, 2016 and $205,647 for the ye

d of the contract yeat in which the employee turns
65 years of age. Contract year is defined as )
Faculty/Classified. The College paid premj
2016 and $16,642 covering 41 retitees for

Annwal OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Oblsgation

The College’s annual other post-employment bene ¥
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount ac
of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of fug
cover normal.cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuat es
exceed 30 yeats. The following shows the components of the College’s annual OPEB cost e yeat, the amount
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the College’s net OPEB obligation: '

2016
Annual tequired contribution $ 16,338,357 13,249,915
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 16,338,357 13,289,050 13,249,915
Contributions made | -~ (4,707,120) (5,272,731) (4,608,714)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 11,631,237 8,0i 6,319 8,641,201
Net OPEB obligation at July 1- 55,412,880 47,396,561 38,755,360
Net OPEB obligation at June 30 $ 67,044,117 $§ 55,412,880 $ 47,396,561

(Continued)
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE H - EMPLOYEE, BENEFITS - Continued

The College’s:iBital OPEB cost, the petcentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPED

Percentage of
. anmual OPEB
Annual OPEB cost Net OPEB

__m;zﬂpal.__;cmmmd___m_

Year ended:
Juae 30, 201 16,338,357 28.81% $ 67,044,117
June 30, 2 13,289,050 - 39.67% 55,412,880
June 30, 2014 13,249,915 34.78% 47,396,561

Funded Status and Funding Progres

e value of reported amounts and assumptions about
Samples include assumptions about future employment,
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and
to continual revision as actual results are compared with
'fature. The fundgfistatus of the plan as of the most recent

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve
the probability of occurrence of events ;
. mortality and the health care cost trend. arial
" the annual required contributions of the College are
past expectations and new estimates are made about
valuation date is as follows:

iy

Actuarial valuation date

Actuatial value of assets
Actuarial acetued Hability

Unfunded actuarial acctued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio

Annual covered payroll '

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

The schedule of funding progtess, presented as requited supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about the plan’s funding,

(Continued)
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Continued

Actuarial Methogfiand Assumptions

‘The caley d on the types' of benefits provided under the terms of the College’s Retirement Benefits
Plan agighie ti aluation. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly

: effects of legal or contractual funding limitations in the future. The actuatial methods and
e techniques that are designed to reduce the efforts of short-tetm volatility in actuarial

e actuatial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. The

following ethods and si ant assumptions wete used for the July 1, 2015 valuation:

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit

Amortization metho Closed, level dollat amortization over 30 years

Remaining amotti 22 years

Discount rate 4.00%

Medical/prescription drug tr 7.00%, gtadually decreasing to 4.50% in 2036

Dental trend rate 1.00%

Mottality table 88% of ta ¢ RP-2014 White Collar Healthy Mortality Table
. ‘ 06 and projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2015 plus
‘ the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Mortality Table
‘ : o 2006 and projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2015.
4. Bm;_m;:mmﬂgg:m .

A retirement incentive option was offered to employdts 62 yeats ot
full-time setvice, and whose combined age and years of service g
2014. During 2015, there were two people who accepted the ez fire
of future payments as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 of $85,460 Hid $157,31
payments in the next two fiscal yeats are each expected to be $85,460.

¥phis option expired August 31,
d incentive options; the present value
spectively, has been accrued. Future

Effective September 1, 2014, the collective bargaining égteement provides for a retirement
employecs at age 63, 64 or 65 with at least 20 years of service. The incentive payment is pt
based on years of service.

In Februaty 2015, the College offered a one-time tetirement incentive program to Ggibloyees 65 yeats ot older and
who had at least 15 years of full-time sctvice. The incentive payment is 25% of an employee’s final salary and an
additional incentive which ranged from $5,000 (if tetirement commitment was received by February 28, 2015) to
$2,000 (fot all commitments received by May 31, 2015). All retirements for non-faculty employees had to be effective
by August 31, 2015, while faculty members had an additional option of December 31, 2015. The total of all incentive
payments for the program was $712,729. '
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

‘NOTE1I- COM]’:«[ITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

isions of Act 46 enacted in 2005 and effective with the June 2007 fiscal yeas, the Commonwealth
ding received. In lien of the state audit, an entoliment verification and capital expenditure
e College s independent auditor. The College has accrued for audit findings through 2006,

The nature of the educattonal i ;
related to torts; alleged neplig liscrimination; breach of contract; labot disputes; disagreements atising
i ; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; exrors and omissions;
While some of these claims may be for substantial amounts, they are not
o educational services. The College addtesses these tisks by purchasing
retention of risk is limited to the deductibles on its insurance policies, which

depending on the nature of the claim.

commetcial ingsurance. The Coll

from the prior year. There have been no instances
for each of the last three yeats. It is not expected that
have a material adverse effect on the accompanying

whete a,settlement amount exceeded the i
the tesolution of any outstanding claims
financial statements.

NOTE J - OPERATING EXPENSES

The College’s and component unit Foundation’s opetating expensg

of the following;
2016
Component Component
- unit unit

College Foundation Gundation
Salaries $ 77,930,971 $ 77,382 § 4 $ 826335
Benefits 36,978,141 280,654 35,766,816 281,319
Contracted services 6,457,843 83,286 8,330,474 214,789
Supplies ‘ 3,857,149 59,440 3,072,876 93,657

Depreciation 8,860,741 - 9,697,798 -
Student aid _ 8,739,358 495,904 8,210,976 308,944

Other post-retitement benefits 13,166,573 - 8,380,818 - -
Other ' 11,686,120 - 507,665 12,815,100 364,680
, Total $ 167,676,896 $ 2,198,331 § 163,444,669 $ 2,089,724
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE K - CITY AND STATE APPROPRIATIONS

Appropriationg the Commonwealth and the City. for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

2016 2015
Opetations Capital Operations Capital

{ Pennsylvania $ 30,128,328 $§ 5,316,618 $ 28,631,589 $ 5023385
City of"#al i 23,271,627 7,037,580 21,271,006 5,836,028

53,399,955 $ 12,354,198 $ 49,902,595 § 10,859413

NOTEL- PA_SS—THR.OI}J GH GR
The College distributed $38,206, £in 2016 and $41,888,351 in 2015 for student loans through the U.S, Department
of Education Federal Direct Lo Progtam. These distrilugtions and related funding sources ate not included as
expenses and revenues, not as cash disbursements eipts in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE M - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The College has evaluated subsequent events thtoug ptember‘ 30 noting no items which would require
disclosute in the financial statements, except as follo) ; :

The College’s Collective Bargaining Agreement with Faculty and
2016. The Administration and the Union have been negotiating

ive Bgaining Agreement since]a.nuatyr
2016, but no agreement has yet been reached. '
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (UNAUDITED)

Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

June 30, 2016 and 2015
Actuarial UAAL (OAAL)
Actuaial acctued pescentage
value of liability Unfunded Coveted of covered
assets {AAL) AAL Fanded ratio paytoll paytoll
(@) ()] {b-2) {a/b) () (a-b)/<)
. §72351392  § 72351392 § - § 64747493 111.74%
- 81,337,622 81,337,622 . 73,489,322 110.68
- 103846976 . 103846976 - 76,796,463 135,22
- 24,575,199 124,575,199 - 76,015,530 163.88
July 1,20 - 3 548,317 142,548,317 - 76,380,018 186.63
July 1, 2015 172,815,908 - 78,702,353 219.58
Schedule of ¢ ege
Percentage
Fiscal yeat conttibution contributed
June 30, 2008 $ 7,257.715 $h%%
Juse 30, 2009 7,463,367
June 30,2010 8,590,625
Juae 30,2011 8,872,232 2,833,597
June 30, 2012 10,982,860 3,371,858
June 30,2013 12,255,644 3,725,611
June 30, 2014 13249915 4,608,714
June 30, 2015 13,289,050 5,272,732
June 30, 2016 16,338,357 4,707,120

The information presented above was determined as patt of the actuarial valuation ot the date indicated.

Actuarial cost method
Asset valuation method

Remaining amortization period

Actuatial agsumptions:

Discount rate

Medical cost trend rate

- Presciiption ding cost trend rate

Dental cost trend tate

Mortality table

Projected Unit Credit

N/aA
22 years

4.00%

7.00% gradually decreasing to 4.50% in 203
7.00% gradually decteasing to 4.50% in 2036

1.00%

88% of rates in the RP-2014 White Collar Healthy

Mottality Table backed off to' 2006 and projected to

2020 with Seale MP-2015 plus 12% of rates in the
RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Mortality Table

backed off to 2006 and projected to 2020 with Scale

See accofnpanying report of independent certified public accountants.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

Years ended June 30,

2016 2015
0.0032% 0.0026%
§ 1,386,000  $ 1,030,000
College’s covered employee $ 413,104 § 335800
Plan fiduciary net positiofi
pescentage of the total pension lia 54.36% 57.24%
SERS
College’s propottion of the net pension
liability (asset) ‘ 0.0110% 0.0120%
College’s propottionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) 998,201 $ 1,784,684
$ 653 § 692,779

College’s covered employee payroll

Plan fiduciaty net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability

See accompanying report of independent certified public accountants.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Yeats ended June 30,

2016 2015

$ 83,000 $ 52,000

83,000 52,000

$ - $ -

$ 413,104 § 335,800

20.0918% 15.4854%

SERS
Contractually required contribution $ 202576 $ 98248

Contribution in relation to the conttactually
required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Coveted employee payroll

Contributions as a % of covered employee payroll

Sce accompanying tepott of independent certified public accountants.
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Community College of Philadsiphia
{A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphiz)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES QF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended June 30, 2016
Federal Pass-Through
CEDA Grantor Federal
Fedegal Agency Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program or Cluster Tite Number . Numb Hxpenditures
U.S, Departmnent of Education
Student Financial Assistance Cluster . .
Pederal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 $ 70585
Rederal Work-Study Progra 84,033 930,500
84.063 47,320,738
84.268 : 38,206,211
87,236,034
84,0424 254,280
84.047A 267,649
521,929
) 84.382 : 599,598
Formula (Grang) 84.031 R 513,861
Career and Technical Education - B 84.048 381.16-000 1,307,292
* Undesgraduate Intesnatinnal Studies - B4.016 PO18A140008 93,564
Passed-through University of Pennsylvania
National Resource Centers 84.015A 3,750
Paased-through the School District of Philaddphia i
Advanced College Expesience 84334 SCH 568335 14,250
Minority Science and Engmeemg Improvement (Rmmg Intecest in STEM (R B 84.120A . 196,952
‘Total U.S. Dcpartmcnt of Bducation 90,487,230
US. Depariment of Health and Human Services
Passed-through the Philedclphia Hospital and Health Cage District 1199C
Mational Workforcs Diversity Fipeline Progmm CPIMP151091-01-00 947
U.S. Departmeat of Labot
Tiade Adjustment Assistance Community College and Career }
Training (TAACCCT) Grants 502,694
Passed-through the Commonwealth of PA, Dept. of Labor and Industey
Mictocredentials 17,258
Job Carps _ 15983
Total U.S, Department of Labor 533,885
U.5. Department of Tmnpum&on
Passed-through Highway Administration
Highway Reseacch and Development Program (Eiscuhower Community Collage Fellowship -
Reseacch and Development) : 20.200 30,000
National Science Foundation
Passed-throupgh Drexe! University . .
Education and Human Resources {Alliance for Minority Partnership - Research aud Development) 47.076 HRD-1408052 20,185
ATE Biomedical/Cultures Project (Reseacch and Development) NSF 11-692 DUE-1400453 123,307
Total Nations! Science Foundation ' . 143,582
National Endowment for the Humanities
Passed-through Ants Midweat
The Big Read ’ Co 45024 FY16-2157 11,600
Bridging Cultutes Peoject : 45162 ME50046-14 . _ S0,713
Total National Endowment for the Humanities : ' . 62373

(Continved)
See notes to Schedule of Bxpenditutes of Federal Awards.
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Comtunity College of Philadelphia
(A Component Uit of the City of Philadelphin)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF PEDERAL AWARDS - CONTINUED

Year ended June 30, 2016

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Grantor Federal
Federsl Agency Grantor/Pass-through Graator/Program or Cluster Tide Numb Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Justice ‘
. Pagsed-through Penngylyania Commission on Crime aad Delinquency '
Edward Byene Memorig] Justice Assistance Graut Program (Reentry Support Project) 16.738 2011-DJ-B¥-0176 § 26983

§ 91,267,000

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

64



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

June 30, 2016

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanymg Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the schedule) summarizes the expenditutes of the
e of Philadelphia (the College) under progtams of the federal government for the year ended
Bechedule of Expenditures of Fedetal awards presents only a selected portion of the operations
tended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes in net position, and cash

Schedule of Expenditutes of Fedetal Awards, federal awards include all grants, contracts
intg directly between the College and agencies and departments of the federal
ollege by non-fedetal organizations pursuant to federal grants, contracts and
uded in contracts and other exchange transactions of: the accompanying

"The accompanying Schedule of Bffiienditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of accounting, . -

Uniform Advsinistrative Requirements¥
presented in the schedule may differ from amo
statemends.

NOTE C - FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGR

Fedetally guaranteed loans issued to students of the G

This amount has been lncluded in the schedule, THe Co}lege is 1g

not included in its ﬁnancial statements.

The College has terminated its participation in ‘the Federal Petkms Loan Program. There
remaining under this program.

no outstanding loans

NOTE D - ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

The College’s expenditures include administrative expenses of §77,100 for Federal rants, $34,945 in Federal

Work Study, and §33,359 for Federal Supplemental Educational Oppottunity Gran
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ontrol over Financial Reporting and on
p and Other Matters Required by

i Awith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
s applicable to financial audits contained in Government Anditing Siandards
issued by the Comptrqlifr General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
- activities and the dis ptesented componengumnit of the Community College of Philadelphia (the
College) as of and for the year ended ] GEED, and the related notes to the financial statements,
" which collectively comprise the Coll cial statements, and have issued our report thereon

-dated September 30, 2016.

Internal contral over financial reporting

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a cof
management ot employees, in the notmal course of performing theit assigned fun:
ot detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness :
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable poghih i material
misstatement of the College’s financial statements will not be prevented, or déffted and cozrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combinatiop@f deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enougito merit attention by those
charged with governance. ’

does not allow
as, to prevent,

Our considetation of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses ot significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses ot significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, duting our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and other matters

As patt of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free
from matetial misstaternent, we petformed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
matesial effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. Howevet, providing an opinion
on compliance with those ptovisions was not an objective of our andit, and accotdingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of out tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance ot other

fins that are required to be reported under Governmsnt Anditing Standards.

%8 of this report is solely to desctibe the scope of our testing of internal control and
ind the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
rnal control of on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit petformed in
C with Government Andsting Standards in considering the College’s internal control and

s report is not suitable for any other putpose.

September 30, 2016
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aamp ;
We have audited the pliance of the Community College of Philadelphia (the College) with the
types of compliance itements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s OMB
Complianse Supplement 5t could have a ditect andmaterial effect on its major federal progtams fot the
¥ B BH2Bderal programs are identified in the summary of
ule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s responsibility
Management is responsible for complianc
grants applicable to the College’s federal p

the requiremengs of laws, tegulatibns, contracts, and

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express’an opinion on compy
based on our audit of the types of compliance requi
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Au,
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requitements of
Federal Regaiations (CFR) Part 200, Uniforms Administrative Requirenents, Cost g
Reguirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). ‘

e CollEge’s major federal programs

to above. We conducted our audit
e United States of
Standards issued
U.S. Code of
B and Andit

The above-mentioned standards and the Uniform Guidance require tigfiitve plin and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occutred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the College’s compliance with
those ‘requitements and petforming such other procedutes as we considered necessaty in the
circumstances.

We believe that out audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

. federal propram. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College’s
" compliance. -
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Opinion on each majot federal program
In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requitements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal
programs fot the year ended June 30, 2016.

Repott on intethal control over compliance _ ‘

Management of the College is responsible for designing, implementing, and maintaining effective
inteiil), control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
Shnd performing our audit of compliance, we considered the College’s intetnal conttol over
mplianci@iyith the types of compliance requirements that could have 2 direct and material effect on
j eral program to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
expressing an opinion on compliance fot each major federal program and to test and
trnal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
ess an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over

compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
Huement or employees, in the notmal course of petforming their
{BeVetit, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
tequirement of a fedeflf program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal conttol over
ot a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
gial noncompliance with 2 type of compliance
nted, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
compliance is a deficency, ot a combination of

requirement of a federal program
A significant deficiency in in
deficiencies, in internal contto ‘
program that is less severe than a matetial
enough to metit attention by those charge

Our consideration of internal control over compliance
first paragraph of this section and was not designed tog
compliance that might be material weaknesses of,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencie

cles in internal control over
ciencies. Given these limitations,
s internal congrol over compliance

that we consider to be matetial weaknesses. However, matetial weaknesses m# st that have not
been identified.

Intended putpose : - .

The putpose of this Report on Intemal Control Over Compliance is solelydiiescribe the scope of
out testing of internal conttol over compliance and the results of that tes ed on the requitements

of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this repott is not suitable for any®ther purpose.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Masch __, 2017
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year ended June 30, 2016
Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of suditogffiplssucd: | Unmodified
Internal al reporting: |
o Math entiﬂedé’ — . YES X no

s Significant deticiency(s) identifi

considered to be material we . yes - _X nonerepotted’

* Noncompliance materig] ts noted? . yes X  no
Federal Awards |
Internal control over major progra
o Material weakness(es) identified? ___ys X no

e Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)? yes  _X__ nonereported

Type of auditot’s report issued on compliance for major Programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that ate required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major programs: '
CFDA Number | Name of Federal Program or Claster
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:
84.033 Fedetal Work-Study Progtam
.84.007 Federal Supplemental Educational Oppottunity Grants
84.063 _ Fedetal Pell Grant Program
84.268 Federal Direct Student Loans
84.048 Careet and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States
Dollat threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk anditee? X yes no
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia}

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

Year ended June 30, 2016

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None.

Section III - Bage ard Findings and Questioned Costs
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Community College of Philadelphia
- (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Year ended June 30, 2016 - -

No matters to report.
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ATTACHMENT B

| Grant Thornton’s Presentation
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ATTACHMENT C

Internal Audit Report




COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA

Date: March 27, 2017

To: Audit Committee Members

From: Robert Lucas, Internal Auditor |

Subject:  Internal Audit ~ Plan Status and Other information :
Copies:  Donald Generals, Judith Gay, Jacob Eapen, Victoria Zellers

Since the last Audit Committee meeting, the following audit work has been performed:
» Internal audit reports finalized since the last meeting:
o TAACCCT Grant
o Employee Terminations
o Draft internal audit reports in the closing process include:

o Royalty Payments from Publishers

» Audits in progress to be completed shortly:

o New Employees
o Disaster Recovery Plan
o DACE CBO Remote Sites

¢ An informal update will be solicited of Cabinet members and senior managers by
May 31 to ensure any new or enhanced functions are appropriately considered in
the remaining time covered by the 2016-2018 Internal Audit Plan. Any proposed
changes to the plan will be reviewed with senior management, and the Audit
Committee will be updated of changes, if any, at the June 2017 meeting.

« Follow up on prior audit comments is an ongoing process. A printout of the Internal
Audit Follow Up Matrix is being distributed at this Audit Committee meeting.

dk ok k kR R



Community College of Philadelphia
Internal Audit Plan -~ July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2018

2017

: Risk "Risk Explanation / '
Functional Area Rating Reason for Audit Figcal Year Stage
Financial Audits
Determine controls over
Colonial One Card "L |prepaid card program 2017
Verify controls for
Check Reguests - Vendors L {payments to vendors 2018
Verify controls for '
reimbursements to
Check Requests - Employees L |employees 2018
Determine compliance with
Purchasing Cards M__ lpurchasing card policies 2018
Determine controls over
) payments to retirement ‘
403(b) Transactions * L |savings vendors 2018
Operational Audits
Determine controls and
procedures related to
textbook selection process
~ |and funds received from
Rovaity Payments from Publishers] N/A _|publishers 2017 6*
Determine controls over
) ‘ smployee requests related
403(b) Administration * ‘L |to retirement savings 2018
Determine controls and
Part-Titne Facully Medical accuracy of only benefit
Benefits L {funded entirely by staff 2017
Determine management's
. level of preparation for
Business Continuity Plan M |busingss interruption 2017 1
Pell Grants - Appeat Process for Determine compliance with ,
Academic Progress M ireguirements 2017 2
Compliance with Veterans'
Veterans' Rescurce Center M.  |Education Benefits Laws 2018
Ensurs risks are controjted
Off Campus Programs - DACE, { minimized in remote 2017 4
Workforce Development M |locations 2018
Compliance
50th Anniversary Scholarship Determine compliance with
Program M [requirements 2017
Family Educational Rights and Compliance with FERPA
Privacy Act M __|regulations 2017 2
Detarmine compliance with
State Recruiting Regulations M [reguiations { restrictions

Confidential

3302017




Community College of Philadeiphia-
Internal Audit Plan - July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2018

Risk Risk Explanation /
Functional Area Rating Reason for Audit Fiscal Year Stage
Determine compliance with
policies, procedures and
Family Medical Leave Act L {requlations 2018
Compliance with.
procedures and controis to
pay tuition based on
Residency Verification L |residency 2018
Compliance with
procedures and controls for
Forgivable Loans . isuch loans 2018
' Compliance with law and :
Clery Act M |required disclosures 2017 1
IT Audits
Determine adequacy of
readiness and periodic
Disaster Recovery Plan M ltesting 2017 4
Non-ITS Administered Software Determine adequacy of
Programs M ladministration controls 2017 1
Determine adequacy of
controls for systems
Network Security L jaccess 2018
Administrative
Follow Up on Prior Issues Ongoing
Committee Meetings (Grants,
Data Breach, EMT, external
auditsfreviews) Ongoing
Stage:
Rigk Assessment / Flanning 1
Announcement / Contact 2
Opening Meeting Held 3
Fieldwork 4
Draft Report tssued 5
Closing Meeting Held 6
Final Report ssued 7
Final Audit Report Pending
Broader Changes by Senlor *
Management to Address |ssues
Confidentlal 3/30/2017
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ATTACHMENT B

Grant Thornton’s Presentation



~ GRANT THORNTON -

Presentation to the Audit Committee of

Community College of Philadelphia
for the year ended June 30, 2016

o Grant Thornton

An instinct for growth

March 27, 2017




~ GRANT THORNTON

Our values are

CLEARR

To achieve our global vision, we capitalize on our strengths by
embracing the following values:

» Unite through global Collaboration

Demonstrate Leadership in all we do

Promote a consistent culture of Excellence

Act with Agility

Ensure deep Respect for people

Take Responsibility for our actions

Our values serve as the foundation of each step we take toward
achieving our vision. They guide our decision-making and
provide a framework for our people to make correct and
appropriate choices.

° GrantThornton = An instinct for growth’
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Our responsibilities

We are responsible for:

+ Performing an audit of the Community College of Philadelphia's financial statements as prepared by management,
conducted under US GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, with your oversight

+ Forming and expressing an opinion about whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects in
accordance with US GAAP

+ Forming and expressing an opinion about whether certain supplementary information — including the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal (SEFA) awards — is fairly stated in relation to the financial statements as a whole

* Reading other information and considering whether it is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
+ Communicating fraud and abuse with regard to federal programs
« Communicating specific matters to you on a timely basis; we do not design our audit for this purpose

* Reporting material noncompliance related to laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, as well as significant
deficiencies and/or material weaknesses in internal control related to financial reporting

* Reporting material noncompliance with federal awards requirements applicable to major program(s) audited under the
Uniform Guidance requirements (formerly OMB Circular A-133), as well as significant deficiencies and/or material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance

* Applying agreed-upon procedures based on criteria as outlined by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of
Education (PDE) in the Statement of Auditing and Accounting Standards for Community Colleges

An audit provides reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the financial statements do not contain material misstatements
due to fraud or error. It does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. Our respective responsibilities are
described further in our engagement letter.

O GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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Those charged with governance and management responsibilities

Those charged with governance
Those charged with governance are responsible for:

Overseeing the financial reporting process

Setting a positive tone at the top and challenging the
Community College of Philadelphia's activities in the
financial arena

Discussing significant accounting and internal control
matters with management

Informing us about fraud or suspected fraud, including
its views about fraud risks

Informing us about other matters that are relevant to
our audit, such as:

- Objectives and strategies and related business
risks that may result in material misstatement

- Matters warranting particular audit attention
- Significant communications with regulators

- Matters related to the effectiveness of internal
control and your related oversight responsibilities

- Your views regarding our current communications
and your actions regarding previous
communications

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’

Management
Management is responsible for:

Preparing and fairly presenting the financial
statements, including supplementary information such
as SEFA (Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards) in accordance with US GAAP

Designing, implementing, evaluating, and maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and
compliance with federal grant requirements

Communicating significant accounting and internal
control matters to those charged with governance

Providing us with unrestricted access to all persons
and all information relevant to our audit

Informing us about fraud, illegal acts, significant
deficiencies, and material weaknesses

Adjusting the financial statements, including
disclosures, to correct material misstatements

Informing us of subsequent events
Providing us with certain written representations

Presentation to the Audit Committee of Community College of Philadelphia March 2017 5
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Materiality

Essentially, materiality is the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that likely
influences a reasonable person's judgment. It is based on a relevant financial statement
benchmark.

* We believe total expenditures on each major program are the appropriate
benchmarks for the Single Audit.

Financial statement items greater than materiality are in scope. Other areas less than
materiality may be in scope if qualitative factors are present (e.g., related party
relationships or transactions and fraud risk).

° Grant Thornton i An instinct for growth
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Areas of focus for Single Audit

The following provides an overview of the major programs tested this year; it has been
determined based on the final schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

Major program 2016 2015
Student financial aid X X
R&D X
Career & technical education — basic X

grants to states (CFDA 84.048)

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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Views of those charged with governance

Discussion points

Risks of fraud

Awareness of fraud

Awareness of related party transactions; understanding of purpose of related party transactions

Awareness of whistleblower tips or complaints

Oversight of management's risk assessment process

Views about the College's objectives and strategies and related risks of material misstatement

Awareness of any internal control matters and views about management's response

Oversight of financial reporting process

Actions taken in response to developments in law, accounting standards and corporate governance matters

Actions in response to our previous communications, if any

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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Commitment to promote ethical and professional excellence

We are committed to promoting ethical and
professional excellence. To advance this
commitment, we have put in place a phone and
Internet-based hotline system.

The Ethics Hotline (+1 866 739 4134) provides
individuals a means to call and report ethical
concerns.

The EthicsPoint URL link
* Can be found on our internal website

* Can be accessed from our external website
(https://secure.ethicspoint.com/domain/en/report

custom.asp?clientid=15191)

Disclaimer: EthicsPoint is not meant to act as a
substitute for an entity's "whistleblower" obligations.

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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ACCOUNTING UPDATES




Selected pronouncements effective for the year ending June 30, 2016

or subsequent periods - GASB

Title Effective date

GASB 72- Fair Value Measurements and Application

GASB 73- Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets
that are not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to
Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68

GASB 74- Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than
Pension Plans

GASB 75- Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions

GASB 76- The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State
and Local Governments

GASB 80- Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units

GASB 81- Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements

GASB 82- Pension Issues- an Amendment of GASB statements 67, 68 and 73

Periods beginning after June 15, 2015

Periods beginning after June 15, 2016,
with portions for periods beginning
after June 15, 2015

Fiscal years beginning after
June 30, 2016

Fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2017

Reporting periods beginning after June
15, 2015

Fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2016

Periods beginning after December 15,
2016

Periods beginning after June 30, 2016,
except in certain circumstances

< ° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

GASB 75 replaces the requirements related to OPEB
accounting and reporting currently provided in GASB 45 and 57

GASB 74 established new accounting and financial reporting
requirements for the financial statements of the state and local
government OPEB plans

State and local governments providing defined benefit OPEB
plans administered through a trust meeting certain criteria must
report a net OPEB liability on the face of their financial
statements, similar to the requirement to report the net pension
liability in accordance with GASB 68.

Provides a more comprehensive measure of OPEB expense
than is currently required, which better reflects when the benefit
cost is incurred.

Requires more extensive disclosures and required
supplementary information

Effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017, with
early adoption encouraged. Similar to adoption of GASB 68
(Pensions), retrospective adoption is required.

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’

Colleges and Universities with OPEB plans will most
likely need to reflect an obligation related to their
proportionate share of the unfunded liability related to
OPEB, similar to the recognition of a pension liability in
connection with the adoption of GASB 68. As with GASB
68, extensive planning and discussions among all
parties (management, state government contacts and
others) is critical to a successful adoption. Colleges and
Universities should begin to evaluate the information
needed to adopt the guidance as a significant portion of
that information may come from state or other related
entities. Because many plans are "pay as you go," the
impact of recording this liability could be much more
significant than the recognition of a pension liability,
where there may have been existing plan assets to
partially offset the liability.

Presentation to the Audit Committee of Community College of Philadelphia March 2017 14



GASB Statement 76, The Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local
Governments

* Reduces the U.S. GAAP hierarchy for government standards from four to two Depending on what accounting policies
categories of authoritative GAAP: a college and university uses to report
 The first category consists of the GASB Statements, as periodically its .financial transactior.]s, existing
incorporated into the Codification guidance could potentially no longer be

* The second comprises GASB Technical Bulletins, Implementation cons@ered SR ,COUId
result in necessary changes in

Guides, and AICPA guidance cleared by the GASB. ) )
accounting as a result of adoption of

. Statement 76 .alsol addresses the use of guthoritative and nonauthor.itative this standard. Management should
literature for situations when the accounting treatment for a transaction or event

review key accounting policies to
is not specified in either of the categories above. y =k

ensure they are based on guidance that
» Guidance is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2015, with continues to be authoritative.

any changes in accounting as a result of adoption to be reflected as a

restatement of all periods presented, if practical. Earlier application is

encouraged.

< ° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’ >
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GASB Statement 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units

* Objective is to clarify existing guidance and address diversity in practice as it Management must re-evaluate the
relates to certain component units incorporated as not-for-profit corporations, current presentation of component units
and whether they should be discretely presented or blended with the primary that may have been presented
government financial statements. discretely under existing guidance and

+ Adistinction is made for component units in which the primary government is determine whether those units must
the sole corporate member (typically defined in articles of incorporation and/or now be presented as blended by the
bylaws of the component unit) AND the component unit is included in the College or still presented discretely.

financial reporting entity pursuant to the provisions in paragraphs 21-37 of
Statement 14, as amended.

» Component units organized as not-for-profit corporations in which the primary
government is the sole corporate member should be included in the reporting
entity financial statements using the blending method.

» Effective date is fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016, with early adoption
encouraged. Retroactive adoption is required.

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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GASB Statement 81, Irrevocable split-interest agreements

» Scope includes irrevocable split-interest agreement giving arrangements for Because there has been some diversity

which the government is the intermediary (trustee or agent) and a beneficiary,
as well as beneficial interests in resources held and administered by third
parties

Guidance establishes accounting for Lead Interests (government is a recipient
of payments during the term of the agreement) and Remainder Interests
(government is the beneficiary when the agreement terminates, and makes
payments to non-government beneficiary — typically the donor or designee of
the donor- during the term of the agreement).

Accounting requires recognition of an asset, liability and deferred inflow. When
assets are held by third parties, the recognition will be an asset and a deferred
inflow, with no need for a corresponding liability.

Effective for periods beginning after 12/15/2016, with early adoption permitted.
Retrospective application should be applied.

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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in practice related to accounting for
irrevocable split-interest agreements,
some colleges and universities may
need to reflect new accounting,
primarily the recognition of deferred
inflows, associated with these
arrangements. Management should
begin to inventory the current
agreements in place to determine the
impact of this standard on current
accounting.



GASB projects and pre-agenda research

Project Timing

Asset Retirement Obligations Exposure Draft (Certain Asset Retirement Obligations)
issued, comment period ended March 31, 2016

Fiduciary Activities Exposure Draft (Fiduciary Activities) issued, comment
period ended March 31, 2016

Conceptual Framework: Recognition On Hold-preliminary views redeliberations

Leases- Reexamination of NCGA Statement 5 Exposure Draft (Leases), comment period to end May 31,
2016

Financial Reporting Model- Reexamination of Statements Initial deliberations

34, 35, 37, 41 and 46, and Interpretation 6

Debt disclosures, including Direct Borrowing Pre-agenda research

Going concern disclosures Pre-agenda research

Revenue recognition for exchange and exchange-like Pre-agenda research

transactions

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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GASB major project — Asset Retirement Obligations

* Obijective is to develop requirements on recognition and measurement for asset retirement This proposed
obligations (ARO), other than landfills (refer to GASB 18) or pollution remediation obligations standard is intended
(GASB 49) to reduce diversity in

practice and related

» Existing guidance within FASB (ASC 410, Asset Retirement Obligations) has been applied by inconsistency.in
some GASB reporters, but not consistently. current reporting,

thereby enhancing

+ The Exposure Draft proposes the following: comparability

between

U Establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and _goverpmental S,
including colleges and

a corresponding deferred outflow of resources when a governmental entity has a legal universities with
obligation to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets  Aros It would also
U Proposes capitalization of the ARO as a deferred outflow of resources, to be amortized in  jmprove the

a systematic and rational manner (such as the straight-line method) usefulness of
U Requires disclosures regarding governmental entity legal requirements to provide funding information for
or other financial assurance for their performance of asset retirement obligations (e.g., external users,
how are those requirements being met) as well as nature and timing of AROs, method including rating
used to determine the estimated liability and useful life of the associated tangible asset. agencies and
analysts by
+ An Exposure Draft was issued in December 2015, and the comment period ended in March expanding disclosure
2016. requirements related

to these obligations.

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’

Presentation to the Audit Committee of Community College of Philadelphia March 2017 19



GASB major project — Leases

» The proposed guidance eliminates the distinction between capital and operating leases = Similar to the GASB Major Project
addressing fair value measurements,

+ Short term leases are those that, at the beginning of the lease, have a maximum this project reflects an effort by the
possible term of 12 months or less, and would be recognized as a deferred outflow or GASB to align its accounting for
inflow of resources. leases with the accounting guidance

proposed by the FASB and IASB as a

. Lessee governments would report the following about leases (except short-term leases) | ioint project. The most significant
in their financial statements: change could be the elimination of

U An intangible lease asset that represents the government’s right to use the e arrangements_ ALY
underlying asset reco_rded as operating Ieas_es. If

G A corresponding lease liability requirements are standardized as
. e proposed, the impact on all entities
|_._J Amortization expense related to the Ie_asglasset, and with lease arrangements could be
U Interest expense related to the lease liability. profound. If and when a new GASB

. C?[o;/ernm;ant lessors would report the following about leases in their financial Standard is issued, the effective date
statements:

. ) . ) is most likely to be at least several
U A receivable for the right to receive payments years away. However, public

U A corresponding deferred inflow of resources colleges and universities are
U Lease revenue systematically over the term of the lease, and encouraged to inventory all existing
U Interest revenue related to the receivable. lease agreements, closely monitor the

FASB Leases project and begin to
* An Exposure Draft was issued in January 2016, with the comment period ending in May = analyze the potential impact on key

2016. financial ratios, debt covenants and
credit ratings.

o GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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GASB major project — Financial Reporting Model

+ Similar to the project on leases and Asset Retirement Obligations, GASB is Similar to the significant impact on
revisiting its reporting model established in GASB 34 and 35, as well as other reporting and disclosures when
GASB standards, following the FASB project to revisit the reporting model of NFP GASB 34 and 35 were issued, this
entities. proposed guidance could have

sweeping effects on the reporting

* Although there is general consensus that most of the components of the financial and disclosures by public colleges
reporting model are effective, the Board determined that there is a need to update and universities. Depending on how
guidance related to several categories, focusing on the following: much the GASB looks to what is

i MD&A being done_ by the FASB on the

U Government-wide financial statements A rgportlng mOdel’ UEIE .C.OUId

G Major funds Eetan mcr:;]ase in compafrablllty

. , , etween the two types of entities

'.“.1 Govel_’nmental e flnan_C|aI statement_s o : that currently use very different

U Proprietary fund and business-type activity financial statements reporting models

U Fiduciary fund financial statements '

U Budgetary comparisons Three of the business type activities
issues that the GASB is considering

+ Other options to permit more timely and less complex financial reporting will be that are particularly relevant to

public universities are guidance on
the operating indicator, MD&A and
extraordinary and special items.

explored in conjunction with other topics

+ The Board is in the initial deliberation stage and plans to issue an invitation to
comment in late 2016

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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INDUSTRY UPDATES




Reserves Planning

How Institution's Determine Their Reserves Levels

Conventional Wisdom

* Number of months operating expenses
 Liquid net assets as a percentage of budget
» Specific dollar level

» Moody's uses certain ratios in their ratings methodology including: 1) Expendable financial
resources to debt 2) Expendable financial resources to operational expenses 3) Monthly days to
cash on hand

» Median for community colleges is approx. 3 months cash on hand. Median growth for increase in
reserves over past 5 years is a cumulative 9%.

Each Institution is unique and reserves should be as well:
» Each institution has a unique business model, risk exposure and financial circumstances

» The level of assets that are set aside to mitigate risks should vary from organization to
organization

o GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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Reserves Planning

Recommended Approach to Reserves Planning

1) Develop a baseline long term financial forecast

2) Perform an analysis of potential risks to that forecast
3) Quantify average annual risk exposure

4) Establish target reserve levels and funding approach

Attached Grant Thornton piece of reserves planning

° GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’
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This communication is intended solely for the information
and use of management and the Audit Committee of
Community College of Philadelphia and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.
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ATTACHMENT C

Internal Audit Report



COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA

Date: March 27, 2017
To: Audit Committee Members
From: Robert Lucas, Internal Auditor

Subject:  Internal Audit — Plan Status and Other Information
Copies: Donald Generals, Judith Gay, Jacob Eapen, Victoria Zellers

Since the last Audit Committee meeting, the following audit work has been performed:

e Internal audit reports finalized since the last meeting:

o TAACCCT Grant
o Employee Terminations

e Draft internal audit reports in the closing process include:

o Royalty Payments from Publishers

e Audits in progress to be completed shortly:

o New Employees
o Disaster Recovery Plan
o DACE CBO Remote Sites

e An informal update will be solicited of Cabinet members and senior managers by
May 31 to ensure any new or enhanced functions are appropriately considered in
the remaining time covered by the 2016-2018 Internal Audit Plan. Any proposed
changes to the plan will be reviewed with senior management, and the Audit
Committee will be updated of changes, if any, at the June 2017 meeting.

e Follow up on prior audit comments is an ongoing process. A printout of the Internal
Audit Follow Up Matrix is being distributed at this Audit Committee meeting.

* k k k k k %



Community College of Philadelphia
Internal Audit Plan - July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2018

Risk 'Risk Explanation /
Functional Area Rating Reason for Audit Fiscal Year Stage
Financial Audits
Determine controls over
Colonial One Card L  [prepaid card program 2017
Verify controls for
Check Requests - Vendors L  |payments to vendors 2018
Verify controls for
reimbursements to
Check Requests - Employees L employees 2018
Determine compliance with
Purchasing Cards M |purchasing card policies 2018
Determine controls over
payments to retirement
403(b) Transactions * L |savings vendors 2018
Operational Audits
Determine controls and
procedures related to
textbook selection process
and funds received from
Royalty Payments from Publishers| N/A |publishers 2017 6*
Determine controls over
employee requests related
403(b) Administration * L |to retirement savings 2018
Determine controls and
Part-Time Faculty Medical accuracy of only benefit
Benefits L  [funded entirely by staff 2017
Determine management's
level of preparation for
Business Continuity Plan M [business interruption 2017 1
Pell Grants - Appeal Process for Determine compliance with
Academic Progress M  [requirements 2017 2
Compliance with Veterans'
Veterans' Resource Center M  |Education Benefits Laws 2018
Ensure risks are controlled
Off Campus Programs - DACE, / minimized in remote 2017 4
Workforce Development M  |locations 2018
Compliance
50th Anniversary Scholarship Determine compliance with
Program M [requirements 2017
Family Educational Rights and Compliance with FERPA
Privacy Act M  |regulations 2017 2
Determine compliance with
State Recruiting Regulations M |regulations / restrictions 2017

Confidential

3/30/2017




Community College of Philadelphia
Internal Audit Plan - July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2018

Risk Risk Explanation /
Functional Area Rating Reason for Audit Fiscal Year Stage
Determine compliance with
policies, procedures and
Family Medical Leave Act L  [regulations 2018
Compliance with
procedures and controls to
pay tuition based on
Residency Verification L  [residency 2018
Compliance with
procedures and controls for
\Forgivable Loans L [such loans 2018
Compliance with law and
Clery Act M  [required disclosures 2017 1
IT Audits
Determine adequacy of
readiness and periodic
Disaster Recovery Plan M [testing 2017 4
Non-ITS Administered Software Determine adequacy of
|Programs M [administration controls 2017 1
Determine adequacy of
controls for systems
Network Security L |access 2018
Administrative
Follow Up on Prior Issues Ongoing
Committee Meetings (Grants,
Data Breach, EMT, external
audits/reviews) Ongoing
Stage:
Risk Assessment / Planning 1
Announcement / Contact 2
Opening Meeting Held 3
Fieldwork 4
Draft Report Issued 5
Closing Meeting Held 6
Final Report Issued 7
Final Audit Report Pending
Broader Changes by Senior ¥
Management to Address Issues
Confidential 3/30/2017




[eRuapyuod

"L10T “0g dunf Aq
12UIGED) Y] YIIM SUOITEPUSWIIODS] JAY SSNISIP [[1m pue Aoijod yeip oy SuImaladl st [asuno)) [eSa]

“19152W8 [[e) 21 Aq pajuswapduwi pue
JuswasSewew Aq pamalAdl 9q 0} P21oadxa ST UOISIOA [BUL) B PUB PAYRIp u2aq sey Aorjod preo Yyig v L1/0E/9

"910Z “0€ dunf s uoneiusw[duI 10} )ep 195IE], 'SPASNL], JO PIEOF Iy} JO S1quIdL Aq ol/1€/8

pamalaal Suteq ARUaLINO SI pue puIqe)) ayl £q pamalaal ‘padoaaap usaq sey Adijod [aABD MauU Y
vI/1E/8 “Ko1jod asuadxa mau 2y 01 paouaIajal yemoardg g
+1/0€/9 Aq Indur pue ma1aa1 puE AIessa03u Se pajepdn pue pamalaal aq os[e p[noys Adijod pred

119Y) 10 J2uIqe)) 9} 0] pajuasaid pue pado[2Aap aq [[1m Ad1jod JUSWIUIELISIUS PUE [2ABN MAU V| +10T/05/9 Surseyoand 2y, "Ad1j0d JUSWUTELIAUS PUE [2ABD 1O dsuadxs mau v spre) Suiseyaind| €1oz/sz/01 | FI

'S391AJP S[IGOW PAUMO-353[[07 0}
PA1E]31 ST0NUOD JUSaFeueul I1A5p UIN3Uans 01 sAMS 9]qRIN0IXD pUR J[GR]IRAR [[B USYE) SeY S 1]
2A21]2q oM “OUIN SN I "SIOIASP [euosIad 191 0] SS9008 SN SUIMO[[e 0] 92138 10U [[IM AJNoE] pue
3d09s INO UIYILM 10U DI SSIIASP [BUOSISG '20IASP JSO[ B JO pAyNOU 1 S]] St uoos sk padim aq ued
PUE PaIISISaI 218 SIIIASP PALMO-933[[09 [[B By} SULMSUS Ul [NJSSIDINS Udq SBY ST 259]j02 oY)
e farjod O A B 299X 0} 3wn SIY) J& J[qeUN S1INnq SHOJJ? apew Seq ST - £1/L1/CJ0 st arepdny

i "SJunodsoe [rews [euosiad 119y 01 [rewss 383q10D

119Y) PIEMIOJ-0JNE 0} S9SN YINS JO AY[Iqe Sy PAIRUILID OSTe SBY 1T "PRIESRSIAUl SuIaq [0S

SIE [TRWS 10 SS3UISNG 33307 10 PST $30IASP [EU0sIad 01 PAIE[SI S[ONUCY) “IRINIOBMUBU 3U3 A
P2I2]30 SE S[OIIUOD TB[IUIS JABY JJEIS SAMIIOE] AQ Pasn SI0IA9P ALIRQYIB[E "US]0JS 10 JS0] payiodar
2IE SAOIAID DY JUSAS U] UI ULS[D BIED P210Js 11ay3 2d1m 1O S301ASP 3] 320[ 0 “IojenSIuTpe|
oyl se ‘SL] mofe osfe suoneoridde ag), Aanoeut Jo porrad JI0YS B 1B S9IIASP I Y0O[
pue ‘safueyd promssed jusnbaiy 20107 ‘s301A9p U spromssed Suons asn 0] s1esn axmbar suonesdde
259y ‘s19iqer pue sauoyd prospuy pue s|ddy oy prysAg pue ‘sdoyysep pue sdojdey siddy

10} JINV - [01U02 11313 19pUn $31A3P 3[1qou uo suonestjdde pajreisut sey 11 - S1/6 Jo se arepdny

JouIqeD) §JUApISald SY3 0} uoneluasaid AUnoag wie(y € 9piroid [[im soneq [ (p ‘padojeasp aq

s Aorjod QO A G WeIp © (9 “sa01A2p d11qow feuosiad B aaey Jeyl soafojduwe 259[109 (e J0j 1onpoid Ioneq Apor
Te[Iuns e 1o uolj 3]Iqoj Sunuawajdur Jo AINIqISEa] PUE 1502 SN SUILLIAAP [[IM Ianed [ (q S921A9p LULIT "PIpI2U ST UOISSNISIP JOJ 1DUIQE)) 243 01 sEuipuy
3]IGOW PAUMO-953[|0D JUSLMD [[B O1UO PAPEO] 3 [Jim UOI] [IGOIN (B — p[oy Sunaow Areuluiarg s podai pue uonedijdde Juswsdeur 1A © JO JIJAUIGAS0D Krojusauy
“Aorjod JO A ® 10] Paau 21 BUIISOUOD JOUIGED) S JUSPISaId 341 YIIM SUOISSNOSIp widaq [ SLI|  £10T/0€/11 oY) J5pIsu0d JuswaSeuetl 1T Yoyl SPUSUIMIONDI JIPNY [BWISlU]| 30IAD(T 2[IqON - SLI| €10T/61/8 | CI
dn mojjo4 / asuodsay Juawaboupiy aiog uonRDPUIWWOIDY Aping 3jqisuodsay aing
126101 J/oaiy woday

XLIIDN dN mojjo 1pny [puid}uU|
piydjapojiyd Jo abajjo) Ajlunwwio)



[eRuapYUO)

np2a:doodut pue npa-dod
uo saded qom (JOO 243 U0 PIPN[OUI MoU e sanfIqisuodsas pue s1gSu 5285100 91 pue S1Udpng

'SSI00NG JUSPMG PUE DIUIBPEIY JO JA
3 AQ pamaiaal Su1aq APUSLIND ST YOI SUOISIAAI 353U} JO YEIP & pAid|dwios sey Juswafeue (JO)

‘910 ‘6T Areruga ysng ueor
st uona[duios 1oy alep 19518, (VVV(Y) PIPUSUIY SE 19V SINI[IGESI(] YIIM SUBOLISUNY J9pUn "SUOHEPOWIUIOIDR [ENPIAIPUL 0} PIJE]21 SJUSLIPUILIE V(Y
seniiqisuodsar pue s)y3u s, 389107 SY PUE SINI[IQISUCAS3I pue ST SJUSpMS ABMONIE AJIesd a1 ur Safuerd AUe a1 10921 0] pajepdn ore samnpasold pue saorjod Appqesiq
01 3lisgom (OO U SIALI [[ I $9D1AISS Loddng [EUOTEINDH JO UBA(] 31 PUE (OO JO IO 24|  910T/6T/T SI 2I0SUd AN[IQESIC] U0 1AUID) S} SPUSUIIOAL JIPNY [RUIU] uo IRy / VAV] S10T/8/T1 Iy
‘pIeoq unSfMmq s9kojdws o) uo seudoidde
se Sunsod sem Aorjod 9y JEYR PILLIDA PUR IJUSD [eu0ISal ojdwres B panisiA UpNY [Ewau
SIR[[eZ BLIORIA
"S10T ‘S 12qUIAON Aq sesndured [ uo s3uIp[ing '510)0B1U0D 10] 3FRIIA0D SIURINSUL
e w mEnop un3[Ing 01 PIPPE 3q [[1M AIM0J IDMO[GINSIM UL "S10Z ‘12 2290130 o sawdrod yons yo Sunoyruow Surofuo oy} pue S1PERU0d 10] SiuSUANNbaI JUIIOH SO /
UONENSTITWIPY [21ousn) 19pun o3ed npa:dooAurmmam 211 01 POPPE Seam A1[0d ISMOIQIISIM SUL|  SI/ST/LL 2JUEINSUL 341 0) SIUAWAA0IUWI SNOLBA SPUSWIWIODAL 1IPNY [BWIAUT| Ad1[0d Jomolqapsiym| stoziwve/e | 9€
"PauUIRIqO S1 JUNOWE Mmau ay) Jo [eaoidde pue indur preog se uoos se pazijeul aq [[1m Adtjod pajejal L1/0S/9
oyl reaoidde preog sormbar yorym junoure Joenuod au ur asearour ue Suisodoid s1 juswoaSeuey
v1/1€/8 ‘pIeog a1 Aq paaoidde aq 0) panmbai 218 s[EMaUDL
"Kressaoou 10 SUOISUDIXD 10BIUOD Jaaym AJ1oads jou saop Adrjod 2y ‘uonippe
se parepdn 2q [[m satotjod pare]as ay) pue siarowered [BIDUBUL] JUWES 2Y] UI [[B] Y21YM SIOBIUOCD uj 'SI9BIUOd Yons Jo uonnoaxa ayl 0} soud [eaordde yons oy
pamauai Surroidde jo sousiagaid 11ay) 10§ PANOLIOS 2q [[LM PIROg SY) ‘uonippe U] ‘[eacidde yons 1o} pIeog oy 01 pajuasald aIe “sa01A1as [euolssajoxd 10y asoyl Surpnjoul yemoardg wip
pajuasaxd are preog ay) Aq paaoiadde aq 01 Aorjod Aq pannbai s10B1U00 [[B 2Imsud [[Im Juawedaq ‘preog i Aq paaoidde aq 01 Aorjod Aq paxmbar syornUED [[B 1BY)
Surseyorng yiim uondunfuod ul ‘'$AIAISG [EIOUBUL] 2 $198png 10) AV 2y “AjareIpowiun 2A0535 | 10Z/¥1/C aInsua jusureda( SulseyaIng Y3 1Byl SPUSWWIOIRI JIPNY [BUISIU] wenuo) MAs| r1oTvl/c | 9T
‘Korjod parejal e jo uoisiaal pauued e ur juswannbal
SIY] SpN[OUI 0] [ISUNOY) [BIDUIL) YIIM SUTYIOM SI SIDIAIDG ssaulsng 29 s195png Jo JAV 4L L1/0€/9
‘[8sunoy) [ersusn) s,232100) Ayl
‘sojepdn asay) S1/1€/T1 £q s10B1U0 [[B JO [BACIddE PUB MDIADI 10 PIDU DY) PUE ‘D0UDIDJAI
ul POPN[oul 9q OS[E [[IM [9SUNOD) [BIAUAL) AQ SIOBNUOD [[E JO MIIADI 10] JUWAINbal oy, "pamo][o] 10 2ouepIng ‘osn 10 sarejdwol 443 Jo Aiiqejreae ay ‘(areudosdde
aIe saun[apIng 19410 [[e Se 30| SE PANSSI G 10U P23U Y UR YIIYM ISPUN SSOURISWNDILD SY) Spnjoul YL/1E/8 s1 §59201d J.1 Y} JO 9IUISQE Y} USYM PUE) PANSs! jou yemardg wip
0} pasueyus 2q [[1M 2ouepms yong s1afeuew jusunredap o) 2ouepms 19139q apiaoid 01 10T S1 .03 UB UdYM SIOBIJUOD 10J 2oUBpPING ‘wnuwiuiw g 18 apraoid o
‘1€ AepNl Aq s10EnUOD pue Suiseyoind o} pajejal sarorjod ay3 21epdn [im Jusunredaqy Suiseyomng ayl|  +10T/1€/S paiepdn aq sarorjod Surseysind oy 1By SPUSLUILLOIAI 11PNy [BUWIAIU] Penuod MAS| F10T/PL/T | ST
“1ejsawias L[0T [[e) oy
i SuruuiSaq salo[yIe 0} uoNNqLISIp 10§ £10g An[ Ul pajund aq [[1M JOOqPUEH SNUA[ULY PISIATY
‘[2suno)) [e1suan) Aq pasoidde
aSenSue| yum parepdn useq sey JOOQPUEH JUSPMIS 2Y ] PAIUSWNIOP U] DABY SIINPIV0I]
OOGPUBH SIN2[Y1Y Y} UI SE [[9M SB JOOqpUeH L1/0€/6 ‘saimpadsoid yons YosIIH [onwes
JUAPNIS A} JO UOTIDIS SONRYIY Y1 Ul papnoul aq [[1m afenSue] X 2NLL +1/0€/9 £q pajuswnoop Jo Aymunuod a3 se [[am se X IPLL Yim souerdwods amsus djay 01
3q [[1m wrer3oid spods ayy ut Ainbs 10§ pue JuSWISSEIRY [BNXSS 10] $355200.d 0] Pate[al S2INPad0Ld|  #10T/0E/9 |PaIusawnoop aq samnpaooid [ejusunredsp SPUILILIODa] 1IPNY [BUISIU] X1amL| €10z/sz/01 | CT
dn mojjod / asuodsay Juawabouopyy awg uonDPUIWWOIZY Appd ajqisuodsay a1bg
196401 /oary uoday

XL dn mojjo4 upny [pudayuj
piydjapojiyd fo abajjoy Ayunwwo)




leuspyuo)

"21ep 18y] 210J3q PAUIULIAISP 3q 01 ST 901 JANRNSIUIWPY SI] £10T ‘1 AInf uey
aje] ou SI 9jep uoneludWa[dwI 10§ AYep 1SR, "9[0T S Joquiada( pasod sem S Mau JoJ d4Y

ysng ueop
‘paurelqo s1 walsAs Areiqi (paisanbar) mau & usym § 1] 01 pauajsuen LU/T/L ‘s1afeurw AIRIqI] YIIM PIRYS IR
2q 01 pavadxa are s)YSu sanensIUpY “Jyeis Areiqi| 10y ssadoe sjeudordde amsua diay 01 S LT SIYSLI Yons J9Y1oyMm SUIIAIOP PINOYS Judwafeusw 10iuag ‘weidod saseajay
s Sunmsuod SI NG WNIUA[[IA 01 SIYSU 2AnEnsIuIWpe Suurelal AQuaLmd st judwafeuew ArIqUy(  910T/1€/T1 WINIUS[[TA 9Y} 0} S1YSL SANBXSIUIWIPR [[N] 9ARY P[NOYS S L] PIOH AreIQIT| 910Z/1T/ 6F
"PApaaU J1 30UIAJAL
10J SEAIR 9)eredss ul pauleIuod MOU 1B S[EIUSP UONEPOWOIIE JO SP1019a1 1oded pue s1uonds|g
198pnq £10Z-910T 24} Ul pajsanbal 3seqElep Mo
91 UL YONS SE PIJOU 3G OS[E [[I4 SPI002I [EIUSp (Z Pue ‘sauo pasoidde woxy Ajoeredas pourejureur 5anbai patusp
MOU I S[BIUSD UONEPOWLIOE JUSPM)S JO SPIOIRI MU0 (] ey} pajou Juswsieuewr (JOD 19B2 JO PI0921 JIUI0NIB[9 UB SPRJOUL PIROYS “auo 3]y 10 qe) sjeredas ysng ueof
® IO ‘9SBQEIEP [29X5] UIBWL 31 “‘UORIPPE U] ‘dul[uo pue Adooprey :
‘9102 ‘67 Aeniqa, st uonajduod 10§ sjep ja3e] ‘wonejuswapdr se 30q 1132301 padnold 9q SUONEPOTWOIE PITUSP 0) PAJE[l Aupqesicy
10§ L[ (I POMOIASI 9q [[IM “SIOIIGESID 1M SJUSPIIS U0 EIep S5eUBW 0) PIUSISIP 9SeqRIED V| 910T/6T/T AN[IQESI(] U0 U] AU UI SPIOIAI JEL) SPUIUILI0D1 UPNY [BUIaU] U0 U / VAV ST0T/8/CL 8t
npa dookur pue npadoo
130q Jo sa3ed qam ) UO (JOO) SY W PIPRJIUI ST pUR PIIUSWINOOP U32q Sey ssadoad jumerdmod,, v
'$S309NG JUIPNS PUB SIUIPBIY JO JA Q)
Aq uquSuh Bureq Apuaimd st yomm ssaooid speadde ue jo yeip e pajejduros sey juswaSeuwew OO
910Z ‘6 ATeniga st uona[duod 103 2jep 19818 "3)1Sqam ysng ueor
QOU oy uo pajsod aq [jim ssaooid sjeadde oy, °SS00NS JUIPTIS PUE SILISPEDY JO JUIPISAI]
30TA DY I MITAJL [[TM PUE SIUPNIS J0J sdals 31 SUIRNO (1M (JOO) JO I01031I(] 1) pue S Jo "SJUSPNIS JOJ SUOISIIZP UONEPOWIIOIdE U Uotuido puodas Auqgesicy
ues(] 2y Ambg pue QISISAL] JO J0}29TI(] SY) IOEIUO0D 0] S1 Sjuapnis 1of ssaooid sreadde s, 9391100 910Z/6Z/T ® apiaoid 03 ssao0ad speadde [eUIIO] B SPUSUITIOISI JIPAY [RUISIU] U0 IRAD / VAV S10Z/8/T1 Ly
‘gL st dep 198 "s)uspns AqQ pa1sanbal SUONEPOWILONOE 0] PAJB[a1 UOHBULIOJUL SUI[UO
ay) aSeuew 0] PSEQRIEP dUO[E-pUE)S B paisenbar sey juswaSeuew (O 98pnq £10T-910T SH U] (ssa13014
Jo arepdn)) "SUOIIEPOWIUIO0oR 10} s)sanbai juapnis Suneorpnlpe 1oy sassaooid o ysng ueor
‘910T ‘6T Areniqayg L1/0E/9 ur poureIqo ‘SNSS A[[eroadss ‘uoneuLojul A[qRINUdP! [euosiad o)
st uonja|dwiod 10 alep 1081e], "2SeqRIEp 2y UI PAPNIOUI 3q [[IM SIequinu S NSS ON "uonpjuswajdun pIeSa1 u1 29)Iwwo)) Yorard eie( 2y) wolj juoys pajaadxa aompe Anpgesiq
10} 1] UIM PIMIIADI 2q [[IM SINI[IQESIP YIIM SJUapmIs uo eiep sSeuew o) pauSisop aseqeiep V|  910T/6T/T oY1 MOJ[0] ANJIQESI(] UO I9UT) Y] JBY] SPUSTIUIOOI JIPNY [BUIdIU] uo I12WRD) / VAV| S10T/8/TI (94
"20UaI2JA1 10 JJElS 3uaunredap [ 03 papiacid pue pajejdwod usaq aaey sampasold OO
~ 'SS300NG JUIPMG pUE SIWIPLIY JO JA Y3
Aq pamataar Sulaq Apuaiing st yorym sampasoad asayy Jo JeIp e pajajdwos sey juewafeueut O
9107 hwn Axenigayq st uons[duos 10J 21ep 193re] : ysng ueof
'$$300NG JUSPMS PUE JIUWIPEOY JO JA Y] PUB SSH JO UBD( 9Y) Aq PIMIIAAL 2q [[IM $]090301d ‘SUONBPOUILI0ddE Funsanbai sjuapmys 10§ ssao0xd o
‘saonoeid 3s2q uodn pue 2onoeid 4O LN uodn Paseq SUONEPOUIUIOIIE PIyE]R1-AN|IqesIp 30 £5U)S1SU0d 9y) 2mMSUL JEis 12y djay 03 saunpasoad pajusumoop Aupqgesiq
Ioj s159nbo1 Juspnys SuneniEA? 10§ 5]090103d dO[2A3P PUE YoIBasal [{IM (JOD JO 101991 4L 910T/6T/T JO 195 B 9ARY ANJIqeSI(] U0 JUI]) Y1 SPUSUIIODDI JIPNY [RUIDIU] uo IBRD / VAV| S10Z/8/T1 £
dn mojjo4 / asuodsay juawabouoyy amog uonDPUIWIWOIDY ALIDd 3)qIsuodsay awg
1364p) Joasy oday

X1IIDIAI dn mojjo4 JpnYy [puialu|
piydjapnjiyd fo abajjo) Ayunwuwio)




|eruapyuo)

‘JuswaSeurWw
§Sd Aq pamalaal pue JuswIaSeuURW ATRIQIT AQ PAUILLIANSP 3q [[M WAISAS M3U Y 10] SIYTU §5300Y

*L1/1/L Aq pawuswaidun aq 0} pajoadxe pue wlsAs §] mau & 21nboe 01 unSaq sey ssao01d . Uy (ssa18014
Joarepdn) ysng ueor
*2oue)sISSe S 1] Ylim paudisap sa[joid yiim WISAS 2] 0] SSIIIL JJBIS JO MIIA1 d1poltad 1uaIdLge LU/T/L “Areiqry
poddns v waysAs ST (peisanbal) mau vy 'ss2008 AJuO-peal 2ABY JJEIS JAYI0 [[ 'Sp102a1 Aue ay) ut suonisod snouea ayy 10f sreudoidde are s)ySu ss3008 2Insud sosea|oy
a5uey2 03 AN[Iqe Sy} SUIARY JJEIS JOIUIS M3 B AJUO Y1IM PALJIPOW UIDQ Sey $SI08 WsAs Wniud[[IA|  910Z/1€/T1 0} AJ[eorpouiad $S200B WIAISAS MIIAI PINOYS JudwRFeurw $Sq PIOH Areiqr1| 910Z/1T/v ce
‘reaosdde yuawaSeuew Joruas axmnbai [[m [esodoig (ssa1fo1g
"L10T “¢1 Arenuer £q £o1jod Suimoiioq mau e 10§ [esodoid e Surdojaaap are Ajnoey pue yyers Areaqry|  jo arepdn) ysng ueor
LU/T/L '$j00q pamoLioq
‘ss2001d sup aurjureans djay o1 areudoidde se saSueyo JO SON[BA 2Y) 0 218]ALI0 SIUNOWE 3] INSUS 0} }00q Iad swnwIxew $98Ea[9Y
asodoid pue saSreys 300q 1S0] puB SUIJ JUILIND YY) MIIADI 0] WED) B PIUIAUCD SBY Juswaeury| 910Z/1€/21 PUE $2U1J JO SIUNOWE JE[[OP AL} MIIAI P[NOYS JUIWTRURIA PIOH Areiqry| 910T/1T/¥ ¥
“Iesing] Ayl 01 PAIDAULP 29 [ sjudwled Aressasou Aue sa101jod AIRIql[ MaU ISpUn pajeulwi[d
2q 0} payvadxa are saury ‘siseq A[own B U0 SPI02aI Jauueg Jepdn 0] SPIBJIANUL JABY YIIYM
L1/1/L Aq payuswa[dur aq 0] pa1dadxa pue wasks §[ mau e a1mnboe 01 unfaq sey ssad01d 4.1 uy (sso1So1g
Joawrpdn) “SHWIISAS ysng ueor
*(P23199[]09 YSED) SPI003I JoUUBE puE (Paseaal Soul)) SPI0OAL WNIUS[[IJA UdIM]DQ SUONRI[IOU0AL LIL 2y} U22M13q SUONEI[19U031 Uoddns [[Lm YdIyMm paLI3jsuel) 9q
10J PasU 2y} deunwrfa [[1m ysiym dnois sesing ay) 0} S|ONUOD Urelsd SULLIDJSURI] SPR[oUL UED SOULJ JO JUNOWE JOBXI JI JUIULI2IAP PINoYys JudwaSeuew Areiqr| SISEI[Y
sofueyo [ERUS0 "S|ONUOD PUB $2552001d JUSLIND I} MIIADI 0] WED] B PAUIAUOD Sy Judwadeue| 910T/1€/T1 ‘JoUURE 0) WNIU[[TJA WO PALIIJSULL] UONRULIOJUL PAYITUI] ST 2121 ], PIoH Are1qry| 910Z/1T/¥ €¢
‘QI/1E/TT Aq WNTUS[IIA WOLJ PIA[2P UM SPIGOI NSS 18y} panodal JuswoSeuey ysng ueof
(ssa1501q
WoISAS ummuapA|  Jo arepdn) “BurdseypIooar Joy asodmd ou aa1ss Aoy eI SaSBARY
941 Ul SNSS S1RUILIID 0) POYISU }S3q 94} JUILLINIP 0} SIT [IM Supjiom s1juowoserew ARIQIT|  910T/IELT PALLIUOD $131 J1 $PI02I WML wioly paBind oq p[noys SNSS ploH Are1qry|  otoz/izi | TS
‘$$900NS JUIPNIS ;
DUE JIWSPESY JO JA JU1 PUE 30UBUL] PUE SSIUISNE JO JA 211 49 paaoidde wresSoxd Asauwe
UR JIpUN 91/1€/Z [ AQ SWIISAS WNIUI[[TAl PUB ISUURE JY) WOX P[P 2q 0} 318 SIUL. SUNSTXS 2y |,
; ysng ueop
“SOULY Y} JO J[e 10 swos 10y wexdoxd Assuure
ue Jo Apiqissod sy pue ‘sauly Sunsixs Jo A1j1qe1ds[joo 3y BIep Y1 SULLSJSURL) 10 POYIAW "IQBAIRI9Y SIUNOY JomQ) se sdeysad $asealoy
IA99YD 150W A3 FUIpnOUL SNSSI STY 10) Suondo [BI9AS SuIMaIASL ApUaLIND STIusweSeURIA|  910T/1€/C1 | I3uueg Ul papi0osl pjnoys saury ATeIqi] Passasse JO onjeA IE[[OP 9y, PIoH ARIqUIl  910T/1T/Y 1<
“JesIng 2y 01 pA2AIP 39 [[m sjuswAed Aressaoou Aue sarorjod ATeIqI] MaU J9pUN pajeuIwI[d
2q 0) pa1dadxa a1k saul "siseq AJdwI) B U0 SPI0d3L Jduueg djepdn 0] SITLJINUL ARY YIYM
L1/1/L Aq pajuawadwr aq 01 pajoadxa pue weisAs §[ mau & annboe 01 undaq sey ssao01d 4.4y Uy (ssa1Soig
Joarepdn) "PAA[0SI pue PILSISIAUL 3Q ISNUE SIDUIIJIP ysng ueof
‘(pa199]109 YSBY) SPI03I JoUURE puR (Pased[al Saul}) SPI0dL WNIU[[IA UIIMIAQ SUOIRI[IIUOID] LU/T/L Auy uswaeuew AQ pamalaal pue Affesipoudd pauuopiad
10 Pa2U O} AJBUILLI[D [[1M Yo1ysm dnoid s esing oY) 0] S[ONUOD UTELRD SULLISJSURL apn[oul 2q ISNW SP[OY PIsE2[2] 0] PAJID[[0I YSED JO SUOTIBI[IDUOD ‘SY00q sosea[oy
s95uBYD [ENUI0J 'S|ONUOD PUB $3552901d JUDLIND Y MIIADI O) W] B PIUIAUOD Se JuawaFeur|  910T/1€/T1 1S0| pue saulj 10J Sp|oYy 25e2[21 0] AJI[Iqe 9y} Ureladl Jyels Areiq Jj PIoH Areiqr| 910%/1T/¥ 0%
dn mojjo4 / asuodsay Juaw3boupy g uonDPUIWWOIDY Appd ajqisuodsay awog
33bin) Joaiy uoday

XL1IDIA d) mojjo 1pny [pDU4dlU|
piydjapojiyd Jo abajjoy Ayjunwwo)




|enuapyuo)

‘Burpuad are sanss1 100p 2]qnOp Jwos 10§ siredal
100(] "PIOFL) O} PAUIAUOD UG dARY SI00P [€D [V :9102/1Z/Z1 Jo st judwadeurw woyy ajepdn

“$300]

‘ungaq sey UoJJe yoIym 10j X1 uLa) Suof e aq 01 sieadde

100p 15430 10} sue(d 10} AILINDSS pue AJ9JES WO} UONIAIIP Suniemy “19AJ9s uo 9oe[d ul st Fuisuaol| (ssa1301g 11 pUuR aNSST SIY] JO QIBME SI JUSWASEUBW J0IUDS P[0 SIEA 0M]
PuE pIOgD) 01 PAIBISIW U23q ABY [ Ul SHO0] JOOP JOO[] PIIY} PUE PUO0dIS ‘91T ISNSny Jo sy| jooepdn)  [uew ssa| spred ss200e JO 9sn 2yl paIuaAdld JABY YOIYm SONSST WISAS pasIs Apuey
L1/0E/9 Snouas sey SuIp[ing [ 94} JB 3N S13U0 SY ], "SIUIP[ING IOYI0 oY} 1oneg Apof
"WIAISAS PIOFD) UALIND Y} YIIM YIOM [[ImM A3 JEYL OS SO0 JOOp 21uonad[2 weidordar U1 9N Ul puodas Ay} pue SUIping [g)) dY} Ul A[2AISN[OX2 Pasn auo
01 309f01d wdy Suof v ut pafeSud Apusumnd are syusunreda Aundceg pue A19jes 2yl pue SLI|  910Z/1E/C1 |~ SY20] J0op Jo 9]41S 2591} JOJ 9SN Ul SWISAS 0M) A[juaund axe 219y || AJundag [edIsAyd S1I| 910T/ST/S 09
"uI3aq [[IM UOTIONISUOD UM MO 10U Op Ady) YySnoyl|e 1eak [edsl L10Z-910C 24} ‘uado apim 2100 ALrep]
10j 195pnq [endes ayy ut pascidde pue papnjour usaq ureSe sey 10afoid oy Jey) sajels JuswWRSeURW 1J3] SWO0I AJANISULOD YILM PIIBIJOSSE SYSLI 2Y) 20onpa1 0} suejd
QLI ‘wooi areredas e 0] aremprey A1Anoauu0o 2yl 2aow 01 ueld e 1ey pajou juswaSeuew S | L1/0€/90 pue sdojs 21eudoidde 23e) pinoys juswaSeuew sani[oe] pue S]] Anoag [eosAud SLI| 910T/ST/S 6<
'saxnyea) dnyoeq [ensip “sjqeureiSoid saey [[im yarym
L1/1/£ Aq pawuowadun 2q 01 pajoadxo pue waisks g1 mau & axnnboe 0} unSaq sey sseooid 41 Uy (ssa1o1g
Joarepdn) ysng ueof
"2NSSI SIY) SSAIPPe 0] Sp10da1 dnyoeq LU/1/L
[enSip opiaoad [[im wNsAs §] Mau AUy UIBJUNOA] UoJ] T sdNYoBq 24} 2103 [[1M S]] ‘YIuow 'SP10921 Y} JO §50] 0} 102[qns pue pajenbrue S2SEI[RY
B 90UQ) 'SY2aM 0M) A19A2 Judunredap S 11 2y 03 usAlS Furaq are sade wniuud(jiA jo sadey dnyoeg| 910z/1€/21 s1 sauly Arexqi| oy uoneuuojul dn Suryoeq 10j sseooad ay |, PIOH Areaqr1| 910z/1T/y 8¢
“TesIng A3 01 pAIdRIIP 29 [[im sjuawied Aressavou Aue sadijod Areiqi mau Japun pajeuruifa
2q 01 pa10adxa are saul] SISEq A[oW B UO SPI020I JoUUR )Epdn 0] SOOBJIIIUI DAY YOIYM
L1/1/4 Aq paruawiardunl 2q 01 p2yoadxa pue wasAs [ mau e annboe 03 unSaq sey ssaooid 1y Uy
(ssa1do1g
‘pajuawmoop aq|  jo aepdn) ysng ueof
1w Aoy} moy pue sadueyd yons aroidde [[1m oym ‘PaIJIpoOWw aq [[IM SIUL UIYM UISAOT [[IM YIIym LU/T/L
sampaoold reodde Suido[aaap s1 juswdFeURIA] "SS900E A[UO-PEII DARY JJEIS JOUI0 [V "SPI0dal Aue "SOUL} PAJR[NWINDOR AJIpow O A)[Iqe ay) SOSBI[Y
a5ueyo 0} AJ[IqE 213 SUIARY JJEIS I01UDS M3] B A[UO Ulm PILIPOW U2q SBY SSI00E WAISAS wniud|[iN|  910T/1€/T1 SIPN[2UL YIIYMm SSIDIB WIRAISAS Yllm JJels ATeiqi| AUBW 00) IE 219y ], PIOH AxR1qr1| 910Z/1T/% LS
‘Juawsdeuew
$SH Aq pamaraal pue Juswafeusw Are1qr] AQ PAUIULIRNP 39 [[1M WR)SAS Mau 9y 10] SIYSH $5200Y
‘L1/1/L Aq paruawadwt 2q 01 paioadxa pue waisAs [ mau e annboe o) unSaq sey ssaoord J13 uy (sso15o1g
Joarepdp) ysng ueof
"0UBISISSE G ] Yiim PauSisap sa[iold yum waisAs ay) 0] SS90 JJBIS JO MIIARI drpoLrad Juaroijye LU/1/L 'Sp1023l JO 3seqeiep
uoddns ([ wasAs g (pa1sanbal) mau y °$$900B A[UO-PE2I DABY JJRIS JOYI0 [V SPI0daI Aue . S puR WwalsAs a1nua 2y joedunl AjpAaneSau pnoo yorgm suonouny S9SBA[Y
a3ueyd 01 AJIjIqe oy FulABY JJEIS JOTUIS MIJ B A[UO YIlmM PILJIPOW USA(Q SBY SSI00E WAISAS WNIUA[[IA|  910Z/1€/T1 SpN{oUL YoIYm $SID0E WASAS Yim JJels Areiqi) Auew 00) 1e 319y, PIOH Areaqry|  910Z/1T/t 9¢
dn mojjo4 / asuodsay juawabouoi g uonDpUIWWOoIay ALpg 3jqisuodsay aiog
13bupny /pasry Hoday

X130 dN mojjo4 11pny [puialuf
p1ydjapojiyd Jo ab3ajjo) Ayunwuwio)




[eRuspyu)

"L10T |18y Suruuisaq
12152Was Yoea Jo SuruuiSaq oy e juswafeuew AuUndag pue Aajeg Aq papiaold 1o pauLIjuod
aq [[1m Sasse[d OFD 21 03 sSuyanq ueld AousSiowyg '9[ (T [[B} U UOIBDO] QUO JB SJUIpMIS JO

SuryaLq PaAISSqO puB 9] (Z [[BF Ul SIS Y10q 18 SIGIAIP Yim jow juswadeuew Ajunddg pue Lojeg

's10s1a19dnS
318 JO JUAWILTISSE Y] U0 Paseq J2ISIAWIS §2vad s1oslazadns

‘910 118 Yim SuruurSaq 191s2wWas Yyoea Jo 2}1s 243 01 papiaoid pue pAjuaWINoop 2q pinoys AI[19.] YIes 10j P2 Apuey]
SuruuiSaq sy 18 $21S 253Y1 01 USIA 01 109dX2 oM ‘SIUSPNIS PUE SI0IONNSUL Y] O] WIY] SIBIIUNWWIOD SI/1€/1 sanpasoid Aduafiowa oy [, “A|[198] 9AN92dS31 119Y) 10 S2Inpaoold
pue au1s yoes je sueld oy} pueisiapun siosiazadns ays s 989[]0D) oY) 2INSUI 0, "UONEIO] OFD) Yoed KouaS1owa 2y jo areme a1e siosiazadns o11s 241 1ey) sutuLARp| weisold 09D 40vA
1 suejd 2y1 JO SJUWSSISSE INO 2JBUIPI002 01 dNOIS FDW( 241 JO UB(T AU 19BIU0D [[IM JudwaFeuey 910T/1/6 wawsfeurw AUN23g pue A19Jeg 18Y) SPUSWW0d] JIPNY [BWIU] Jo saug Aowdy|  9L0T/E/S 99
'9107 A=A ut parajdwos sem uonduosap qof|
SEton] Prect
"9TOT 215U [[2] Y JO ElS o) Aq pata|duiod aq (1M
uonduosap qol zosiaadns sys swn-leg “pazifeul st uonduosap qol [erdijo syl 25uo urefe way) 's10s1a12dns a11s awn ped 2y 1oy uonduosap| weigold 0D HAOVA
UA S M3IAS) [[Im 9M PUE ‘SanI[iqisuodsal iays Jo areae A[[ng a1e OV Ul s1osiasedns aus sy |, 9L/TL/SO qof & dojaA3p JUSWASRUPW FOV/(] Jel) SPUSWIIOISI JIPNY [BUIAU] JO SouS oW | 9L0T/E/S $9
100lqns s1y Jo ypne £ ] og Suuds ay) Suunp sueld 2say) uo dn mo[[o] [[Im PNy [BUI)U]
"PISSIWSIP 2q [[1m (S2)sse[a 2y ‘sannp
2531 [[J[nJ 01 A[qeUn SI Jojensiurpe paeudisap SO Y pue A[1ea 3aea] 0} sy Aew siosiazadns
S)IS 181} JUIAD DIBI SU) U] "ISISIWSS [[B] oY} 210J9q ureSe sOgL) Y1 YILM SIY] SJBDIUNIUIOD SBWOY L, PIABCT
A[TEULIO] PUB SIY) JUAWNIOP [[IM JUawWaSeur)y saInpaooid prepuels 0] 29UBPIOIIE Ul NS ) IABI] LIS/ ‘parsenbar are 10
SJUSpNIS OV 1Y} PUR W UO SPUS 3SINOD Y} Jey) ‘Seare payeuSisap ul urewal suapnis v IN290 $20USQR YONS uaym Jostazadns simnsqns e apiaoid 01 ssavoxd| wrerSold 0gD IDVA
3y 1By} 2INSUD [[IM JOJRNSIUIWPE OFD) 941 1BY] SUIPUBISISPUN UB dARY SO oY1 pue 239[[0D 2y ], 910Z/1/6 e dojoaap jusweSeurw FOV( 18yl 1BY) SPUSWIIOA 1IIPNY [BUIdIU] Jo saug aowdy|  910T/E/S 9
‘uorssaidns
211j SNOASET 10] 121SB[ PASSAIPPE a9 (1M S, Ja1u2d [euordal ay) Sunuuad Surpuny pue awi ],
T 9seyd ‘swaisAs uoissaiddns a1y 0OZIAL AUl JO uOnB[EISUL 10J J4Y AUl Jo asea|ar oyl Surpuad
a1 (19-1M “6€-TH “V9-DIN) S19S01D TVILLIYD € 2U.L 2UQ 3seyd ‘910T/1T/T1 JO se arepdn
'L10T ‘0€ aunf Aq parejdwod oq pinoys ‘yons se ‘pue 1edk [B9S £[0Z-910T 2Y3 10 105png ‘SWOo0!
AU} Ul PIPN[IUT UdAQ JARY [F-IM PUB V- ‘6€-zd Swool ul seperddn Ajeonyvaeds “swoox (ssa1301g Anansouuos ayy ur yuawdmba jo adAy ay1 uo paseq uondnusjun 2100/ ALIBH
asoyy ut Juawdinba 21U0193]3 JO N[BA PUB 2INJEU Y] O] NP [EINLID PIWSIP SWO0I 1) Ul swalsks|  jo aepdn) WOOISSE[D PUR $S2UISNG JO YSLI JUdLIUSIS SABY YdIYym SWOOI ut
snoased o) stapjuuds woyy swasAs uoissaiddns 211y ay) operSdn 01 papioap sey judwaSeueN|  £10T/0€/9 SwW2IsAS sNoased [euonIppe Sul[[eIsul IpISuo pinoys Juswadeuey | Anoag [eo1sAyd SLI| 910T/ST/S €9
‘SUOIEPUALUILOID]
BISWED 09PIA 0] Pate[al ss2001d J.1¥ 211 YlIm PIemIo] SulAou 210J2q “JUe)nsuod ay)
AQ papusw0sal sk ‘savko[dwa pareuSisap 10y Sururen piogy) PIdUBYUD U0 FUISNOO] S1 JUSWATBUBA
quawdinba mau 10§ eore Juidels e se pue
'$$21501d UI ST MIIADI JUB)NSUOD BISUIE)) "WOOI SWILS L) JO SPISINO ANANSAUUOD Y)0q I0f SSN S, WOOI 3Y) UO PISLQ DURNUS [JUUN] JUIA]
[Suun) Sy} ul PS[BISUL USS] SBY BISWED [BUOLIPPE UE PUE [BUOHIUNJ MOU S g-DJA apIsul eowe)|  (ssarSold 2y} SPISINO BIDWED [BUONIPPE UE JDPISUOD OS[E P[NOYS JUIWITRUBA
Joarepdn) ‘[onuoa aanejuaaaid e se Juswdmba Ai1anssuuos Suisnoy
‘PA[[BISUI UIDQ 194 10U SBY BIOWED B YSNOYI[e Pa[[BISul uddq SBY 9OUBNUD [dUUN] JUTIA] 9} L1/0€/9 Swool Jojiuow Aundas diay [[im Ya1ym Suonedso| Je Serswed PaoIaIA Apuey
SPISING BISWIED [BUONIPPE UR JOJ SULlIA, “SUONEIO0| a32([00) [ $SOII. SW)SAS SUIpIoID] pue BIoUED 09pIA [BUONIPPE JOPISUOD Pnoys JudwaSeuew ‘sasndwres s 2521100
02PIA JUALIND U1 SUIMIIADI 3q [[LM OUYM JUBINSUOD B P319219s (910 ABIA) Isnl sey juswaSeuey| 9107/1€/21 3y} 550108 AJ1IND3s [e21sAYd 1940 S[01U02 2Y) uayIFuans 03 12pIo uf [ Aundag [easkyd SLI| 9107/5T/s 19
dn mojjo4 / 3suodsay juawabouopy aipg uonDPUBWIWOIY Alnd a|qisuodsay awg
FEIT]] /p3aiy yoday

X130\ dn) mojjo 1pny [puidluf
piydjapojiyd fo abajjo) Ayunwwo)




[enuapyuod

qe1 swa)j pa3e[dwoy) 2y} 01 PaAOUI
2q [11m pue 9)a(dwod axe suejd uonay

uawded e yons Suissaood 19310quIa,] udf|q
: JRqUISUL AJ[noB] PAUINUD] B JO YIeap 4l u1 510132 3[qissod Aue jusaaid pue jyeis apm3 djay pjnom uonenis
JO Ju2A3 513 Wi pred junotwe 213 Jo ASU2ISISUC) pue ASRINdoE 9y} 2imsus djay o} uosiad Jeis Y Aue S1Y} 10] amMpad01d PIIUSUMIOP ¥ IoquIst AJfnoej Swi-[jnj painusy sookodwg
AqQ paou219J21 9q MOoU UED Yoy 2onoeld jsed e se siy) pajuswnoop A[QIBIPIUIWT S30IN05S3Y] UBWINE] LU/LT/TO ® 0} s)yauaq yreap Surded 1o siseq oy s1 eoneld uN-3uo] v pateuuua]| L10T/LI/1 L9
dn mojjo4 / asuodsay Juawabouny aing uonDPUBWIWOIZY Aupd ajqisuodsay aiog
336iny Joaiy uoday

X111DIA] dN) mojjo pny [puiaiuj
piydjapojiyd fo abajjo)y Ayunwwo)




	032717 Audit Minutes.pdf
	Attachment A - 3-27-17 Audit Committee Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Attachment B Minutes - 032717.pdf
	Attachment B - 032717.pdf
	CCP - 2016 Pres TCWG Concluding A133-1.pdf

	Attachment C Minutes - 032717.pdf

